Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please
contact:
Kevin Jones 020 8547 6622
email: kevin.jones@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk

Published on 19 July 2021

Kingston Town Neighbourhood
Committee
Date:

Tuesday 27 July 2021

Time:

7:00 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames

Covid-19 Risk Mitigation
This meeting will be livestreamed and we encourage residents to watch virtually, if
possible.
The Council remains committed to keeping residents, colleagues and Members safe and will
continue to act with a degree of balance and caution in relation to its meetings as restrictions
are lifted.
Seating capacity in the Council Chamber will continue to be limited for the time being
and for that reason, if Members of the public wish to attend in person or speak at the
meeting, we ask that you register your interest by 10am the day before the meeting by
contacting democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk.
Face coverings should be worn in the Guildhall, including the Council Chamber, unless and
exemption applies.
We also strongly advise all those who attend to take a COVID-19 test on the day of the
meeting, if possible. You can find more information about testing on the Council’s website at
kingston.gov.uk/rapidtesting

2

Members of the Committee
Canbury Ward

Councillor Zain Abbas
Councillor Olivia Boult
Councillor Caroline Kerr

Grove Ward

Councillor Fiona Boult
Councillor Rebekah Moll
Councillor Jon Tolley

Norbiton Ward

Councillor Emily Davey
Councillor Dave Ryder-Mills
Councillor Olly Wehring

Tudor Ward

Councillor David Cunningham
Councillor Katrina Lidbetter
Councillor Maria Netley

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app

3

Agenda
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other personal
interests relevant to items on this agenda.
3.

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2021
4.

LTN - ALBERT ROAD

Appendix A

To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which includes
consultation responses (portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic surveys and air quality
assessments and potential impacts and to seek a way forward with the measures.
5.

LTN - LOWER HAM ROAD

Appendix B

To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which includes
consultation responses (portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic surveys and air quality
assessments and potential impacts and to seek a way forward with the measures.
6.

URGENT ITEMS AUTHORISED BY THE CHAIR

7.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if
any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish
to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as
defined in paragraph *….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

4

Welcome to this meeting
Notice of Audio Recording
This meeting is being recorded and the audio recording will be publicly available on the Council’s
website and may also be used by the Council for training purposes. By publicly speaking at the
meeting, you are consenting to being recorded and the audio recording being used for these purposes.
Information about the Committee: The Committee is made up of your local elected councillors.
As one of four Neighbourhood Committees of the Council, it helps the Council in its service delivery
locally.

Public participation during the meeting:
-

Public Question time

This is an additional meeting of the Kingston Town Neighbourhood Committee called specifically
to discuss the Low Traffic Neighbourhood items and there will not be an opportunity to ask public
questions at this meeting, however there will remain at the discretion of the Chair an opportunity
to comment on the matters on the agenda (see below: Public Speaking on items on the agenda)
.
- Public speaking on items on the Agenda
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions on items
listed on the agenda. Such comments would be heard prior to the commencement of debate by
Members.


Advanced notice that you wish to make comments on an item given on the agenda can be sent
to democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk by 10am the day before the meeting. This is not a
requirement but would be appreciated. Persons giving advanced notice (see above) need not
complete a green slip (see below).



If you have not already advised democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk of your interest in
speaking on an item, you will need to let the Democratic Services Officer in the meeting know
by completing one of the green slips (available on chairs in the public gallery), giving details of
your name, address and connection with the Borough (i.e whether you live, work or study here)
and hand it to the Democratic Services Officer ideally before the start of the meeting but before
the start of the relevant item at the latest.

-

Speaking at meetings can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us
know beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

The rules on public participation at Committee meetings can be found in the Council’s Constitution
on the Council’s website. For enquiries, please contact
Kevin Jones 020 8547 6622, email: kevin.jones@kingston.gov.uk

5
Accessibility


All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. Disabled parking
spaces are available on site.



Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.



We are currently not printing hard copies of agendas.


Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Filming
Members of the public and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are
asked to give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the Agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interest declared, it might be necessary for the Councillor
to leave the meeting during the debate on any given item. Further information regarding
declarations of interest can be found in Part 5A of the Constitution - Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call-in
Most of the decisions made at the Committee (except in relation to planning and licensing
matters) can be “called in” for review by a minimum of 2% of the registered local government
electors who live in the Neighbourhood or 9 Councillors.
Call-in does not apply to decisions of this committee in respect of planning or licensing matters.
These are subject to a separate legal appeals process.
A Decision notice will be published on the Council’s website soon after the meeting with details of
the decisions. A decision can be called in for a period of 10 working days after the meeting.
Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call-in means the decision will be reviewed by a meeting of the Council’s Scrutiny Panel. The
Panel at this meeting cannot change the original decision. It may decide that no further action is
necessary, in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the
decision making Committee (or, exceptionally, to a meeting of the Full Council) with its views and a
request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

A1
Kingston Town Neighbourhood Committee - 27 July 2021

Appendix A

Albert Road Low Traffic Scheme - Experimental Traffic Management Order review
Report by Matthew Hill, Assistant Director Highways, Transport and Regulatory Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Stephanie Archer
Purpose of Report
To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which includes
consultation responses (portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic surveys and air quality
assessments and potential impacts and to seek a way forward with the measures.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1. The Albert Road closure to motor vehicles be made permanent and the necessary
statutory process be undertaken to make the order permanent;
2. The objections received as part of the statutory consultation be set aside in line
with the details in paragraphs 59 to 61.
3. The physical closure (bollard) be replaced with ANPR cameras, subject to funding
being made available by TfL and in line with paragraph 30;
4. The scheme will be monitored, with additional traffic and air quality data being
collected, and an update report be brought to the committee for information in 12
months time

Benefits to the Community:
It is considered that the proposals will improve the local area and make it more attractive
for our residents, creating an environment that encourages more walking and cycling
Key Points
A.

In March 2020 the world was hit by the COVID 19 pandemic, and the changing
travel patterns presented both an opportunity and a threat. The opportunity was
that the council was able to bring forward at a quicker pace than expected a number
of ‘low traffic neighbourhood’ (LTN) projects.

A.

We want to make Kingston a clean, green and safe borough for all residents. It is
therefore important that our analysis looks at other factors such as the impact of the
schemes on air quality, traffic flows and cycling patterns. LTNs are an important
tool to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists, and so to help tackle our
climate crisis, improve air quality and make our neighbourhoods better places to
live.to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists. LTNs encourage active

A2
travel, which in the long term helps to protect the environment and reduce carbon
emissions.

B.

The Council originally identified four scheme locations for LTNs, which were set out
in the report to the Response and Recovery Committee on 30 July 2020. It
included a scheme for the Albert Road area in the Kingston Town Neighbourhood,
and the scope of the scheme area can be seen on the plan at Annex 1.

C.

The process used to implement the LTNs was an ‘Experimental Traffic Management
Order’ (ETMO). Use of this process was strongly encouraged by central
government and TfL. This is a common process which allows the immediate
implementation of measures and a consultation running in parallel with the
implementation of the experiment, although it is not the ‘usual’ way that Kingston
has implemented traffic management and improvement projects.

D.

The ETMO process includes a six month engagement period at the start of the trial.
The experimental scheme itself can remain in place for up to 18 months in total. In
addition to the formal traffic order consultation, residents were able to submit their
views about the LTN schemes online ‘informally’ using the Kingston Let’s Talk
portal. Over 311 residents submitted their views via Kingston Let’s Talk on the LTN
on Albert Road. The engagement process also included reaching out to
stakeholder groups, setting up the Street Talk publication and feedback through the
Streetspace email inbox and via Members. The engagement feedback is, however,
only part of the overall analysis process, which includes the longer-term policy
ambitions for the Council, as set out in the context below.

E.

We want to make Kingston a clean, green and safe borough for all residents. It is
therefore important that our analysis looks at other factors such as the impact of the
schemes on air quality, traffic flows and cycling patterns. LTNs are an important
tool to help tackle our climate crisis and air quality and to make local roads safer for
pedestrians and cyclists. LTNs encourage active travel, which in the long term helps
to protect the environment and reduce carbon emissions.

F.

Although there was a formal process by which responses to the ETMO could be
made, it was felt the series of questions used for the Let’s Talk survey would
capture more precisely people’s experiences and attitudes to the LTNs . Detail on
Let’s Talk is set out in para 12 below..

G.

The borough’s key Transport Strategy, the Local Implementation Plan 3 (LIP3), and
the Corporate Plan are aligned in terms of focussing on measures to address traffic
flows in residential areas.

Context
1.

We must change the way we travel around the borough if we are to achieve our
air quality goals and reach net zero carbon emissions. COVID-19 has has had a
significant impact on the way we use our streets in responding to the public
health crisis. This report outlines how the Council can further improve our public
realm and further develop our commitment to environmental sustainability as our
‘Streetspace’ is enhanced following the impact of COVID-19.

A3

2.

Through the development and delivery of the annual programme of Local
Implementation PLan (LIP) schemes officers were aware of locations across the
borough where through traffic issues had been identified as being too high,
including Albert Road. As such these locations were proposed for installation as
part of the Streetspace Programme and funds were made available from TfL and
DfT to enable introduction of this programme, which replaced much of the usual
LIP programme for Kingston in 20/21.

3.

The introduction of Low Traffic schemes also support recommendations from
Kingston’s Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, the Air Quality Action Plan and the
council’s emerging Climate Emergency Action Plan and it is noted that this
Committee have recently supported proposal to introduce further 20mph speed
limit changes for a number of additional roads in the neighbourhood, which when
considered in conjunction with these measures in place in Albert Road and the
Go Cycle measures around the town centre and on Cambridge Road and
London Road, it is anticipated will enhance this local area further to provide an
improve environment for walking and cycling.

4.

The LIP3 was written to reflect the aims and objectives identified in RBK’s key
existing and emerging policy and strategy documents, and also London wide and
national policy guidance. RBK’s key policy documents include the existing and
emerging Corporate and Local Plans. The LIP3 includes nine MTS outcomes
which it will be measured against, and Outcome 1 states that London/Kingston
streets will be healthy and more Londoners will travel actively with borough
objectives to deliver 20mph schemes across the borough on residential roads,
and to create an environment that encourages a higher level of walking and
cycling trips.

5.

One of the key issues that made the Albert Road area a priority for a low traffic
measure was the south-north manoeuvre where traffic used Villiers Road/Hawks
Road/Albert Road, where traffic would split and continue north on Albert Road
and then turned left into the town centre, with the the rest of the traffic using
Victoria Road - in what appears to be a left-right-left manoeuvre to avoid the
Hawks Road traffic lights.

Proposal and Options
6.

The scheme itself involves the introduction of a road closure, which prevents
motor traffic from heading along Albert Road, and it was placed between the
Hawks Road and Victoria Road. The scheme involved putting in place two
planters and a lockable bollard in the central road space between the planter,
such that it could allow Emergency Service vehicles to gain access should they
need to do so.

7.

As highlighted above, because of the urgency with which the Low Traffic
schemes needed to be introduced, the identification of the location and the
consideration of any options was undertaken by officers at the time of the bid
submission.

8.

During the experimental TMO process officers used a number of methods of
engagement to ensure we were collecting information and data from a wide base
of interested parties., and Annex 2 provides an assessment of the responses.

9.

A4
These included setting up surveys for each LTN scheme of our Kingston Let’s
Talk engagement portal; enhanced messaging using social media channels and
resident publications through our communications team; set up the Street Talk
publication, which was distributed as a newsletter through the engagement
portal; engaged with residents through the streetspace email; taken into account
formal objections raised through the TMO Process; and we undertook a
stakeholder feedback review to make it easier for stakeholder groups to give their
comment, which included specific sessions with colleagues from the Emergency
services.

10.

In support of the engagement process officers also undertook data collection to
help assess the impacts of the scheme, and it is important to stress and
acknowledge that during the pandemic traffic flows were not at the same levels
as they were before the pandemic struck. Annex 3 provides the details of the
traffic and Annex 4 cycle data and Annex 5 the air quality information that was
gathered during the experimental period.

11.

It is also highlighted that there were variations to traffic patterns as these
schemes settled down, and in addition to this there were a number of times when
other works took place - mainly on the nearby roads, which may have resulted in
additional traffic displacement. This monitoring of the changes to traffic patterns
before/after, was gathered to support the process before any decision is taken to
extend the trial, make it permanent or remove it
Officer commentary and Recommendations

12.

This section of the report will expand on the feedback received to the various
elements of engagement referred to above in Paragraph 8.
Let’s Talk Portal

13.

In terms of the Let’s Talk portal the analysis covers the two key questions asked,
and then covers the themes of comments made by the people who responded;
● How do you feel about the changes we have made in Albert Road?
(Respondents were asked to state if they were; Very Happy, Happy, Neutral,
Unhappy or Very Unhappy)
● Would you like to see the changes become permanent? (Respondents were
asked to answer; Yes, No or Don’t Know)

14.

The responses have been analysed at three different levels to identify if there
were any variations in the responses at a Boroughwide, Neighbourhood and
Local level and the headline figures are as follows: overall total received 311,
which includes 40 where the have business, work or visit Kingston. 38% of
respondents indicated they are either happy or very happy with the scheme and
37% have indicated they would like the scheme made permanent. 60% of
respondents have indicated they are either unhappy or very unhappy with the
changes, while 58% do not want the scheme made permanent.

15.

At a neighbourhood level: Total received 182 including the LTN area, which
represents 1.02% of the 17,731 addresses within the neighbourhood. 38% of
respondents indicated they are either happy or very happy with the scheme and
38% have indicated they would like the scheme made permanent. 56.7% of
respondents have indicated they are either unhappy or very unhappy with the
changes, while the same percentage do not want the scheme made permanent.

16.

A5
At a local level: Total received 98, which represents 9% of the 1128 addresses
within the leafleted area as shown on the plan, Annex 1. 47% of respondents
indicate they are either happy or very happy with the LTN and 46% would like the
scheme made permanent. 48% of respondents have indicated they are either
unhappy or very unhappy with the changes and 47% do not want the scheme
made permanent.

Streetspace Email Inbox
17.

In terms of the Streetspace inbox of the 25 persons who responded through the
streetspace inbox. Overall the response indicates that 20% of respondents are
happy and 80% of respondents are unhappy with the LTN scheme. The
overriding theme of the comments sit within category 3 (Displacement of traffic,
pollution).

18.

Petition:”We the undersigned petition the council to Immediately cancel the
6 month trial closure of Albert, Victoria and Church Roads, which has been
arranged without notifying all local households, and will undoubtedly
cause extreme congestion in the area - In late 2019/early 2020, Albert Road
was closed for essential works. Residents witnessed constant disruption and
inconvenience for months on end. Now the council wants to close the very same
road, and also neighbouring Victoria and Church Roads, and is planning to do so
without actively engaging with residents other than a few individuals from a local
Residents' Association. Rather than being a "rat run", Albert Road is a link road
through to the main A308. Closing this, Victoria and Church Roads will force all
traffic to queue along the Hawks Road and to move through the junction of
Hawks/Cambridge Roads, which is already notorious for congestion.
We strongly dispute the notion that the Albert/Victoria/Church Road area is a
good choice of location for a "trial period" of six months. Had the council asked
households on Hawks/Villiers Roads, they would have received repeated
accounts of the awful congestion caused by the previous Albert Road Closure,
and it would have been instantly clear that this is not a viable area for a trial
closure to take place. Details of what was witnessed last time include: Lengthy
queues every day backing up along Fairfield South, over the junction of
Hawks/Villiers Road, and along the entirety of Hawks Road. The Hawks/Villiers
junction gridlocked, with vehicles often blocking the junction, making it very
unsafe for pedestrians who are trying to cross on the green man.
Extreme congestion caused a noticeable rise in air pollution (fumes could be
easily smelt) along Fairfield Road, Hawks Road, and Villiers Road. Extreme
congestion caused a noticeable rise in noise pollution along Fairfield Road,
Hawks Road, and Villiers Road. Funeral vehicles trying to access Kingston
Cemetery were frequently caught up in the congestion along Hawks Road, which
must have been distressing to bereaved families. Drivers stuck in the endless
queues using nearby side streets off Hawks Road and Villiers Road as potential
short cuts, thus causing a knock on effect for residents of these roads. Drivers
stuck in the endless queues attempting a three point turn on Hawks Road, Villiers
Road and Fairfield South, thus causing additional, unnecessary hazards.
We do not want to endure another 6 months of this, we lived through it before
and it was appalling. We do not believe that it is in any way appropriate to close
Albert, Victoria or Church Roads for a trial period, or any other reason. Please
note that many residents of the three roads marked for trial closure were not
aware of these plans, and should not have to live through this without having had
a chance to share their opinions. Please note that NO residents on Hawks/Villiers
and surrounding roads were made aware of these plans, and should not have to

A6
live through this without having had a chance to share their opinions” Signed by
462 signatures between 03/08/2020 & 18/02/2021.

.
19.

Petition 2: “We the undersigned petition the council to The council to terminate
the Albert Road Closure due to the ongoing excessive stationary & queuing
traffic in the immediate & adjunct areas, excessive noise pollution & commotion
to an already lorry, ambulance & police car laden road” signed by two signatures
between 28/10/2020 & 02/04/2021.

20.

Both Petitions are complaining about traffic congestion, queue length on Hawks
Road which lead to block junctions and impact on pedestrian safety, emergency
services and increased air pollution.

21.

Officer's comments on the petitions: the result of the survey which had been
carried at various times before and after the trial shows that, the level of traffic
have been changed but this slight increase is considered acceptable, and this
assessment is not made lightly. It is known that prior to the pandemic and the
introduction of these measures that the Hawks Road junction with Cambridge
Road suffered from delays and significant queuing on Hawks Road has been an
issue for many years. The Hawks Road/Villiers Road route is very popular for a
number fo reasons, with a key one being the locations of the Household Refuse
and Recycling Centre (HRRC). It is also a route that allowed traffic to try and
bypass busier junctions using the main road network.

22.

There are works planned for the junction of Hawks Road/Cambridge Road as
part of the Go Cycle Proposals in the area, and it is proposed that the operation
of the junction and the operation fo the road network will be reviewed once those
works are completed.

23.

The result of the modelling the air quality support this by indicating the increase
is considered slight on Hawks Road. Regarding the impact on emergency
services, this has been recognised and addressed as part of making this scheme
permanent, the planters and the removable bollard will be replaced with ANPR.
Together with yellow boxes at the junction of Villiers Road / Hawks to address the
pedestrians safety. Regarding not carry out any consultation prior to the
introduction of the scheme, this trial itself is the consultation, hence this report
outlines the result of the consultation and seeking members' views on the
scheme. ,

24.

25.

ETMO Responses
In response to the Experimental TMO the number totalled 89. 26 of these have
been determined by the borough’s technical operations team to represent
objections, while 59 people wrote in support.
Examining the objections further there is an indication that 26 are local to the
Albert Road area, and the officer recommendations on these objections can be
found in paragraphs 59 to 61. The full wording of the objections can be found at
Annex 7.
Emergency Services

26.

Representatives of the emergency services covering the borough of Kingston
were invited to comment, along with attending an emergency services
stakeholder working group.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

A7
The London Fire Brigade (LFB) - The LFB’’s position regarding the use of
physical barriers throughout the Borough to create Lower Traffic Neighbourhoods
is this could cause an increase in traffic levels and access issues, and therefore
increasing response times to incidents. For these reasons the LFB does not
support their use but does accept there is a need for the Council to implement
these measures in response to central government guidelines
The LFB would prefer to see the use of alternate measures such as ANPR to
create and enforce LTN’s. Moreover, the LFB will continue to engage and offer
guidance to Kingston council when supplied with plans on proposed or changes
to existing LTN measures. The LFB agreed with a LAS comment at the
stakeholder meeting, that as the lockdown measures are relaxed and road traffic
levels increase, further analysis of emergency vehicle response and difficulties
encountered will need to be discussed and current LTN’s reviewed.
Where residents complain and claim that emergency vehicles are
delayed/stuck/impinged by LTN measures, data such as times and dates are
useful to gather views and information from crews. To date, we have not received
any information from Crews of any delay in attendance to an incident within the
Borough.
The London Ambulance Service (LAS) - LAS commented as follows; We are
opposed to any physical barriers in place on any LTN schemes but would support
enforcement through ANPR cameras with exemptions for emergency service
vehicles. We have worked with various other boroughs across London who have
listened and changed the method of enforcement to the camera system.
It would not be practical to equip our fleet with these universal keys as it is not
always guaranteed that we would have a local ambulance crew attend if for
example call volumes were high and the nearest vehicle was dispatched from
Fulham.
The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) - The MPS traffic officer commented;
My only view is that the Met Police prefer ‘No motor vehicle’ signage with ANPR
camera enforcement, rather than any physical barrier. This allows emergency
vehicle access without the need to remove barriers, whilst preventing any other
access.

Other Stakeholders
33.

Transport for London (TfL) - No major issues identified at the time of the
meeting with TfL advising that the bus operators have not raised any delay
issues with them. Further journey time data has been requested from TfL, and at
this stage it has not been received.

34.

Kingston Centre for Independent Living (KCIL) - Interest in LTNs generally
and not about a specific scheme. This is in relation to the safety of service users
and how accessible the schemes are for people with wheelchairs and those with
ambulatory difficulties.

35.

Noted that KCIL had Blue Badge Holders - they had comments from Blue Badge
Holders who had been asking if they can access LTN areas. It was noted that
the schemes were road closures and as such did not impede on footways but
were designed to improve access for people walking.

36.

A8
Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles - Nothing specific was raised by the group, it
was noted that depending on where passengers were picked up or dropped off in
relation to the LTN, this might increase the fare, and that this could impact those
using taxi cars or wheelchair accessible taxis. While there hadn’t been particular
references, this might change as we continue to emerge from lockdown and
traffic increases.

37.

Kingston Cycling Campaign (KCC) - LTNs seem to be doing their job. Think
generally these schemes are doing great. Impact particularly noticeable on King
Charles Road.

38.

Officers conclusions and recommendations are based on a number of
elements, but the feedback from other stakeholders has been very positive on
the whole, with an overriding theme, led by the emergency services, being
requests for the method of traffic control to be changed from a barrier to a
prohibition on access enforced by an automatic number plate reading camera. A
change to this method of control would remove any potential impact on
emergency response times, which was also a concern expressed by other
respondents.

39.

Traffic Data
As part of the data collection all immediately affected roads around the scheme
area were included within a monitoring plan, where traffic flows were recorded at
regular intervals during the project. This allowed officers to compare the flows
before the scheme was introduced, and then at different stages during the
experimental period.

40.

As stated above, it is important to highlight at this stage that the pandemic
resulted in significant changes to the daily travel patterns across the country, and
what were considered ‘normal’ traffic flow conditions changed during this period.
There are permanent counters on Villiers Road and Cambridge Road, which
have allowed officers to assess traffic levels in the area prior to COVID-19, and
demonstrate traffic had been stable (up to and including 2019). This indicates
that we can be reasonably confident that the pre-COVID data is broadly
representative of the situation prior to the impact of COVID-19.

41.

As stated above one of the key issues identified was the level of traffic using
Albert Road and Victoria Road, which was considered to be unacceptable. From
Annex 3 it can be seen that the Pre-scheme traffic flows taken in early
September 2020 indicate that there were 4154 vehicles northbound on the first
section of Albert Road, and it is considered that those vehicles have primarily
come from Villiers Road making the south to north manoeuvre, however it is also
possible that an alternate manoeuvre was in a west to east direction, using
Victoria Road to avoid the Hawks Road/Cambridge Road junction - given that the
September20 flows were 2274.

42.

If we try to assess the overall impacts of traffic displacement it is clear that there
is some impact on Hawks Road, primarily in the eastbound direction. However, if
it were to be expected that most of the Albert Road northbound traffic of 4154
was displaced onto Hawks Road we would expect to see a significant increase
on the eastbound flow of 7116 measured in April 21. It is noted that there is an
increase in flow on Hawks Road of 1972, and it is reasonable to assume this

A9
traffic is displaced from Albert Road. A rudimentary assessment fo the change on
flows on Cambridge Road westbound shows an increase of 1298 and the
eastbound flows show an increase 624 (combined 1922), this however assumes
that the proportional split of other movements remains as they were, which it is
considered it is reasonable to do so.

43.

A further assessment can be made for the changes to the London Road
westbound flows, measured to the west of the Cambridge Road junction, where it
shows an increase of 1501, and measured to the east of the Cambridge Road
junction, where it shows an increase of 565. The figure of 1501 must be made
up of a combination of the 565 westbound above and the 1298 westbound on
Cambridge Road. There are 506 vehicles that enter Church Road and those will
have come from either of the above directions, as well as possibly from the
eastbound traffic on London Road that has turned right into Cambridge Road. It
is not possible to further analyse the ‘make up’ of the 506 from the data held, and
as such it will be assumed there is an even split across the three directions. It is
therefore considered that of the 1298 at least 1128 make the left turn from
Cambridge Road into London Road.

44.

The flows recorded after the measures were introduced within the Victoria Road,
Albert Road and Church Road area demonstrate that the traffic left behind is
local traffic that needs to access the area, rather than traffic using the local
network to avoid the busier junctions

45.

A further consideration is that throughout the pandemic traffic levels and the
confidence of people in using public transport has been greatly impacted. At the
start of the pandemic we saw sudden and dramatic reductions in traffic flows on
the road network across the country, and we were also aware that as we moved
out of lockdown and people returned to travelling it was apparent that there was
a lack of confidence in the use of public transport, and so the initial increases in
traffic were seen in road traffic.

46.

Data from TfL for travel across the whole of London indicated that when the
September 2020 counts were taken bus usage was at 47% of normal demand,
rail usage was at 35% of normal demand and tube usage was at 28% of normal
demand. At this time the traffic data on the TfL network identified that flows in
outer London were 93% of normal demand.

47.

For the April 2021 surveys bus usage was at 59% of normal demand, rail usage
was at 37% of normal demand and tube usage was at 35% of normal demand.
Traffic data on the TfL network identified that flows in outer London were 92% of
normal demand.

48.

It is clear that there are significant numbers of public transport trips that are not
being accounted for, with people having continued to work from home wherever
possible. Whilst it is impossible to assess how traffic levels will change as the
country returns to normal, and if the reluctance to use public transport continues
it is likely that road traffic levels will continue to increase.

49.

There are some roads that have seen increases against the September traffic
baseline, in particular Hawks Road. It can be seen that flows are comparable to
those levels of traffic pre-Covid19.

50.

51.

A10
It is recommended that further traffic monitoring is put in place specifically for
Hawks Road and Villiers Road, so we can create additional layers of knowledge
here which will assist any consideration of whether further traffic management
measures may be needed in these roads.

Air Quality Data
The traffic data that was collected was also used to assess the air quality
impacts, and it is acknowledged that ideally when assessing air quality robust air
quality monitoring requires a minimum of six months of data both before and after
the introduction of a highway intervention, to account for the impact of the
weather and other confounding variables. The requirement for these schemes to
be delivered with a very short turnaround meant that it was not possible to collect
adequate baseline air quality monitoring data.

52.

In order to circumvent this challenge the council carried out air quality modelling
around the low traffic neighbourhoods, to assess the impact of the change in
traffic patterns on air quality at sensitive receptors both within and outside the
neighbourhoods.

53.

The model uses the traffic data collected before and during implementation of the
LTNs. This data is translated into air pollution emissions using The Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Emissions - Factor Toolkit. Emissions
are then used to derive concentrations of key pollutants at user-defined sensitive
receptors. Model outputs are verified and adjusted using data from our existing,
permanent network of air quality monitors.

54.

This is a well-established, industry standard methodology that eliminates the
impact of confounding variables, allowing the impact of the LTNs to be isolated
and quantitatively assessed. This modelling was carried out by independent
consultants, who provided feedback on all of the LTN schemes.

55.

Annex 6 provides the outputs from the modelling exercise, with focus on the key
pollutant of concern to air quality; nitrogen dioxide (NO2). From the table it can
be seen that the variations in the Nitrogen Dioxide concentrations were in the
main considered negligible, and even in those roads where we have seen traffic
levels increase - in Hawks Road, the data shows a variation of 2.1 μg/m³.

56.

Based on the data that has been received from the modelling assessment, it
supports the current recommendations for the current measures to be made
permanent. Furthermore, it is recommended that, subject to Committee’s
approval, a further Air Quality assessment is included in the review report in 12
months time.

57.

58.

Objections to ETMO
The scheme was processed as an Experimental TMO, and as such the
Committee need to consider the objections that were raised during the 6 month
trial period, and should members wish to proceed to make the scheme
permanent, either in its current form or with minor amendments, then the
objections received must be considered, dealt with and set aside.
The comments of respondents deemed to have written in support of the ETMO or
to have lodged an objection can be categorised as follows;

A11
TMO Objection or
Support

Number of
people

Ref

Issues Highlighted

S1

Highlighting local benefits including a
better walking and cycling environment

59

O1

Concerns about displacement of traffic and
increased air pollution on affected roads

15

Objection

O2

Concerns about increased travel times
and/or delays

12

Objecton

O3

Concerns about safety of road users

Objection

O4

Combination of O2&O3

Objection

O5

Concerns about impact on emergency
services

2

Objectrion

O6

No traffic issues before introduction of
modal filter

3

Support
Objection

Total Objections

7
14

26

59.

Officers have reviewed the objections and consider that the objections received
can be set aside. The traffic data analysis and the air quality report have
indicated that from the whole area Villiers Road have seen increased traffic
flows, which need to be further monitored and reviewed but the general findings
are that overall there is less traffic on the local road network in the area.

60.

The data provided by the Air Quality modelling demonstrates that the proposals
have had only negligible impact on the area, but as recommended above the
exercise will be repeated as part of the 12 month review. Any objections that
relate to air quality issues can therefore be set aside.

61.

Whilst the emergency services did not raise specific objections to the current
measures, with the removable bollard in place, it was clear they would prefer a
scheme that replaces the closure with ANPR to address their concerns. This is
part of the recommendations, and as such any objections that reference this as
an issue has been dealt with.

Other headings
Legislation
62.

The works to be undertaken to highways in due course as set out in the report
are within the Council’s powers in the Local Government Act 1972, the Highways
Act 1980 and the Localism Act 2011..

63.

The Committee will need to consider the objections raised during the ETMO
process and if they wish to proceed with the scheme a decision is required to
assess those recommendations and set them aside prior to making a permanent
TMO.

Timescale

64.

A12
Subject to Committee approval, officers will progress to the permanent TMO, and
this will be timed to coincide with the introduction of the ANPR cameras. It is
likely that this will take 12-16 weeks.

Financial Context
65.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

66.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

67.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Financial and Resource Implications
68.

The position around TfL funding is currently uncertain, but officers can advise
that should the Committee wish to proceed and make the scheme permanent
there is a current bid lodged with TfL to secure the funding to do so. It is
anticipated that the outcome of the bid will be known prior to the Committee, and
an update on the funding position will be provided on the night. It is however
considered that this scheme is a borough priority and will be promoted as such in
any discussion with TfL

Legal Implications
69.

Under section 159 of the GLA Act 1999, financial assistance provided by TfL
must be for a purpose which, in TfL’s opinion, is conducive to the provision of
safe, integrated, efficient and economic transport facilities or services to, from or
within Greater London.

70.

Where schemes are approved and receive funding, all procedures, including
consultation, will be undertaken in accordance with the relevant statutory
provisions and best practice.

71.

Any legal implications associated with the Statutory TMO process will be
considered as part of any committee report that covers objections received to
that process.

Risk Assessment
72.

A detailed risk assessment of the scheme will be carried out should members
resolve to make the scheme permanent. During the experimental trial period the
scheme was monitored regularly to allow any day to day risks to be assessed. It
is noted that at the start of the scheme additional advanced signage was needed
to ensure that drivers were given sufficient warning so that they could make
decisions at an early stage about how they might continue their journeys.

Equalities Analysis

A13

73.

Whilst there is an overarching EqIA in place for the LIP and neighbourhood
projects, a supporting EqIA has been undertaken for this project has been
completed and is available on the Council’s Let’s Talk Portal. It is noted that this
document was not prepared in advance of the scheme but at that stage, officers,
having reviewed the existing LIP EqIA, considered that it was unlikely that the
measures would disproportionately impact anyone with protected characteristics.

74.

As a part of the 6 month trial period officers approached Stakeholder Groups to
understand any issues that they had and welcomed input from them. A
workshop was held, and stakeholders invited to attend and share their feedback,
and an interesting point to note was raised, whereby colleagues from KCIL
highlighted that many of their members had actually been shielding for most of
the experimental trial period, and as such would not have experienced its impact.
It was agreed that further sessions with KCIL would be set up to revisit the
scheme, and feedback from those sessions will be incorporated into the 12
month review.

Health Implications
75.

LTN schemes are embracing a different approach, and by encouraging all
aspects of sustainable travel modes within and through an area, will have
positive health implications for residents, through promoting walking, cycling and
the use of public transport. It is therefore anticipated that the scheme will have a
positive impact on people's health and wellbeing locally.

Road Network Implications
76.

The Council has a statutory responsibility under the Traffic Management Act
2004 to maintain road network operations on its strategic roads. Traffic
movements have been monitored as part of the scheme trial period, and it can be
seen in Annexes 3 and 4 that there has been limited impact on the main road
network.

77.

It has been highlighted that there has been an impact on Villiers Road / Hawks
Road junction and Cambridge Road / Hawks Road junction, and if the scheme is
approved officers will continue to monitor these impacts and assess what
mitigating measures may need to be considered.

Sustainability Implications
78.

The overall assessment of the sustainability implications for this LTN is that there
will be a positive impact on the environment resulting from such healthy street
projects, as they aim to encourage mode shift towards less polluting forms of
transport.

Background papers
None other than those referred to in this report.

A14
Author of report - Ian Price - Team Leader, Strategy and Commissioning
ian.price@kingston.gov.uk

A15

Experimental Road
Closure

© Crown copyright [and database rights] 2021 OS 100019285

Annex 1 - Albert Road LTN Area Location Map

Scale:

1:6,000

Date Printed:
© Crown Copyright

16/07/2021

±

ANNEX 2
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT TABLES, CHARTS AND GRAPHS
Prefix LT = Let’s Talk Portal
Prefix TM = Traffic Management Order

A16

Table LT1: List of Full Theme Descriptions
Theme

Theme Description

1. Indicating support
and highlighting local
benefits

Respondents who highlighted local benefits, such as a better or safer environment for cycling and walking, improved amenity of very
local facilities, shops, playgrounds etc. Reduced environmental impact, especially at night.

2a. Indicating support
and mentioning further
enhancements

Respondents who requested further changes to the experimental measures, including requests for schemes to be expanded to other
roads in the area.

2b. Indicating support if Respondents who indicated that they may support the scheme if there were further changes to the experimental measures.
amendments are made

A17

3. Indicating opposition Respondents who take issue with the displacement of traffic onto the surrounding road network including perceived increases in
based on traffic
congestion, along with impacts on pollution and safety, with some referring to routes including local schools.
displacement and/or
pollution

4. Indicating opposition Respondents who take issue about increases in travel times including to local amenities or work, along with concerns about the impact
based on travel
on safety due to a potential increase in response times for the emergency services and access problems for deliveries or other
distance and/or delays services.
5. Indicating opposition Respondents who generally take issue with the scheme quoting a combination of the issues highlighted in themes 3&4.
based on a combination
of 3 & 4
6. Highlighting lack of
prior engagement
and/or supporting
evidence

6. Respondents highlighting a lack of prior communication or consultation, including those quoting a lack of supporting evidence or
data, environmental, equality etc.

7. Stating there were no 7. Respondents who consider there were no issues with traffic levels within the LTN area including those who consider that resources,
prior traffic issues in the and funding, would be better deployed elsewhere.
area
8.Stating that the
8. Respondents who consider the combined impact of the LTN along with nearby scheme(s) reducing capacity on alternate routes is
impacts of the LTN and excessive.
nearby schemes are
excessive

A18

A19

Neutral 4.2%

A20

Don't Know 5.8%

A21

A22

Neutral 4.4%

A23

Don’t Know 4.9%

A24

A25

Neutral 5.1%

A26

Don’t Know 7.2%

A27

Table LT2: Let's Talk Portal - Response by Roads Within the LTN Area (N.B. Roads with no responses are not included, see list below)
How do you feel about the changes we have made in Albert
Road?

Road Name

Neutral

2

1

Unhappy

Very
Happy

Very
Unhappy

Grand
Total

Don't
know

No

Yes

21

1
3

25
5
4
3
1
11
2
5
2
4
8
10
13
5
98

2
1

1
4

22

2
4

2

3
1
8
1
2
1
4

1

1
2

1
1
1

1

1
5

3
10
2
1

1
5

6

4
8
4
42

40

4
3
1
9
2
3
1
4
5

1
2

1

1

1
3
10
4
1

8
4
7

45

46

Grand
Total

Addresses

Return
Rate

25
5
4
3
1
11
2
5
2
4
8
10
13
5
98

62
124
52
83
16
131
24
24
44
34
72
60
162
166
1054

40.3%
4.0%
7.7%
3.6%
6.3%
8.4%
8.3%
20.8%
4.5%
11.8%
11.1%
16.7%
8.0%
3.0%
9.3%

Roads with no responses are - Cambridge Grove Rd, Chesterton Terrace, Eureka Road, Excelsior Close, Franklin Close, Vincent Rd, Washington
Road, Wimpole Close.

A28

Albert Road
Bonner Hill Road
Church Road
Fairfield South
Franklin Close
Hawks Road
Linden Crescent
Piper Road
Portman Road
Rowlls Road
Somerset Road
Victoria Road
Villiers Road
Willingham Way
Grand Total

Happy

Would you like to see the changes we
have made become permanent?

A29

Neither object nor support 4.5%

A30

Sutton

Albert
Road
Area:

Road
Name

Villiers Rd

Albert
Road
(between
toward
Church
Victoria Rd
and
Victoria
rds)
Albert
Road by
the modal
filter

After
modal
filter
October
2020 24
hours
count
average
Mon Friday

After
modal
filter
Jan.2021
24 hours
count
average
Mon Friday

5089

Before
modal
filter
August
2020
AM/PM
Peak
average
Mon Friday

After
modal
filter
October
2020
AM/PM
Peak
average
Mon Friday

After
modal
filter
Jan.
2021
AM/PM
Peak
average
Mon Friday

4514

2042

1794

5326

4219

2110

1631

4548

4572

3934

2775

1512

1041

3945

3645

832

2650

2897

265

217

1905

0

0

4213

3188

After
modal
Before
After
After
filter
modal
modal
modal
April
filter
filter
filter
2021 24
Saturday Saturday Saturday
hours
05 Sept 17 sept. 30th Jan
count
24 hours 24 hours 24 hours
average
count
count
count
Mon Sunday
*No data
5345
available*
5769
4566

1880

578

505

4154

0

0

0

2132

5361

2106

2448

3846

1437

1959

3279

1274

384

406

639

284

0

0

1269
2153

After
modal
filter
April
2021
AM/PM
Peak
average
Mon Sunday

A31

Fairfield
south

Before
modal
filter
August
Direction 2020 24
of traffic hours
count
average
Mon Friday
toward
5744
Hawks Rd
toward
5074
Villiers Ave
toward
4130
Hawks Rd
toward
Orchard
2737
Rd

2274

613

483

291

204

2308

1094

557
toward
Albert Rd

337

285

146

1052

5144

6215

5376

2421

2065

4730

7191

6878*

5199

2799

1956

10685

10636

8251

4195

10022

10133

8316

6430

8173

7503

432

402

632

299

250

506

235

6111

4851

7116

2791

6719

6878**

4627

7130

2803

3217

10774

10171

7735

10344

3967

3869

3243

9850

9392

7572

10646

4087

6682

3212

2635

6566

8140

6420

7728

2909

7618

6386

2935

2488

7846

7294

6042

7434

2755

11362

11970

9839

4478

3738

11457

12134

9983

12863

4784

8095

8467

7114

3163

2652

8466

8167

7532

8131

2940

A32

toward
Victoria Rd Cambridge
Rd
both
Church
direction
Road
before
toward
Hawks Rd Bonner
Hill
toward
Villiers Rd
Cambridge
Road
towards
(eastern
Hawks
side)
toward
Gloucester
Rd
Cambridge
Road
toward
(western
London Rd
side)
toward
Chatam Rd
London Rd
toward
(western
Albert Rd
side)
toward
Cambridge
Rd

London
toward
Rd(eastern Cambridge
side)
Rd
toward
B.Ave

10046

10096

9467

3807

3522

10108

9828

8588

10611

4040

7254

7048

5714

2683

2152

7465

6867

5286

7310

2733

* data for
one day only
- tube was
damaged
later on

A33

A34

Annex 5

Albert
Road
Area:
Direction
Road Name
of traffic

Albert Road

toward
Hawks Rd
toward
London Rd

After modal filter
March 2021 24 hours
count average Mon Friday

After modal filter
March 2021 AM/PM
Peak average Mon Friday

After modal
filter 22 March
24 hours
count

177

85

197

277

126

331

Annex Annex

A35

Albert Road LTA – change in annual average NO2 concentrations.

Annex 6

Annex Annex

A36

Albert Road LTA
4.1

Results from the Albert Road LTA modelling showed increases in NO2
concentrations at several locations, all of which are considered to have an adverse
impact on air quality. Most notably, receptors at the junctions of Hawks Road and
Cambridge Road, and of Villiers Road and Hawks Road, were modelled to have
‘substantially’ adverse changes in NO2 concentrations. It should be noted that
adverse results were modelled in the October 2020 scenario and the January 2021
scenario, where traffic flows were reduced due to the implementation of a full
national lockdown. Decreases typically occurred near to the road closure locations
along Albert Road, as well as the surrounding minor roads and A308 London
Road. NO2 increases were modelled on routes which may have inadvertently
become alternate routes for diverted traffic. It should be noted that Pre-scheme
total concentrations of NO2 on Villiers Rd and Cambridge Rd were predicted to
already be above or close to the AQS in these locations, hence any change in
predicted concentrations were categorised as moderately or substantially adverse
under the IAQM impact descriptors11, even though the concentration changes
were similar to locations that were below the AQS.

4.2

Overall, despite the increases in traffic flows along Hawks Road and other routes,
NO2 concentrations are still anticipated to be lower than those present before the
Covid-19 pandemic started.

Table B.1: EPUK/IAQM Impact descriptors for individual receptors

Long term average
concentration at receptor in
assessment year

% Change in concentration relative to AQAL
1

2-5

6-10

>10

75% or less of AQAL

Negligible

Negligible

Slight

Moderate

76-94% of AQAL

Negligible

Slight

Moderate

Substantial

95-102% of AQAL

Slight

Moderate

Moderate

Substantial

103-109% of AQAL

Moderate

Moderate

Substantial

Substantial

110% or more of AQAL

Moderate

Substantial

Substantial

Substantial

Notes:
1.

AQAL = Air Quality Assessment Level, which may be an air quality objective, EU limit or target value,
or an Environment Agency ‘Environmental Assessment Level (EAL)’.

2.

The Table is intended to be used by rounding the change in percentage pollutant concentration
to whole numbers, which then makes it clearer which cell the impact falls within. The user is
encouraged to treat the numbers with recognition of their likely accuracy and not assume a false
level of precision. Changes of 0%, i.e. less than 0.5%, will be described as Negligible.

3.

The Table is only designed to be used with annual mean concentrations.

4.

Descriptors for individual receptors only; the overall significance is determined using

Annex Annex

A37

professional judgement , for example, a ‘moderate’ adverse impact at one receptor may not
mean that the overall impact has a significant effect. Other factors need to be considered.
5.

When defining the concentration as a percentage of the AQAL, use the ‘without
scheme’ concentration where there is a decrease in pollutant concentration and the
‘with scheme’ concentration for an increase.

Table D.1: Annual average predicted NO2 concentration results (2020/2021)
Nam
e

Road

PreScheme
(µg/m³)

With
[Octobe
r]
(µg/m³)

With
[Januar
y]
(µg/m³)

With
[April]
(µg/m³
)

April – Pre
Scheme
(µg/m³)

Percenta
ge
change
relative
to
AQS (%)

Impact
of
change

Albert Road
Villiers Rd

34.2

36.3

35.5

34.8

0.7

1.7

Slight

R10

Villiers Rd

40.8

43.7

42.7

43.6

2.8

7.1

Substantial

R11

Fairfield S

37.7

40.5

38.6

39.4

1.7

4.2

Moderate

R12

Hawks Rd

37.1

39.6

37.6

37.9

0.8

2.1

Slight

R13

Albert Rd

27.3

26.8

26.5

26.8

-0.6

-1.4

Negligible

R14

Church Rd

26.9

26.8

26.3

26.7

-0.3

-0.7

Negligible

R15

Albert Rd

26.6

26.2

26.0

26.3

-0.3

-0.7

Negligible

R16

London Rd
(A308)

37.5

37.0

33.2

37.8

0.3

0.8

Negligible

With
[Januar
y]
(µg/m³)

With
[April]
(µg/m³)

Percenta
ge
change
relative
to
AQS (%)

Impact
of
change

Name

Road

PreScheme
(µg/m³)

With
[Octob
er]
(µg/m³)

April –
Pre
Scheme
(µg/m³)

Albert Road
R9

Villiers Rd

19.0

19.3

19.3

19.1

0.1

0.3

Negligible

R10

Villiers Rd

20.1

20.5

20.5

20.6

0.5

1.2

Negligible

R11

Fairfield S

19.8

20.4

20.4

20.2

0.3

0.8

Negligible

R12

Hawks Rd

19.9

20.5

20.5

20.0

0.2

0.4

Negligible

A38

R9

R13

Albert Rd

17.9

17.9

17.9

17.8

-0.1

-0.3

Negligible

R14

Church Rd

17.9

17.9

17.9

17.8

-0.1

-0.2

Negligible

R15

Albert Rd

17.9

17.8

17.8

17.8

-0.1

-0.2

Negligible

R16

London Rd
(A308)

20.1

19.9

19.9

20.2

0.1

0.2

Negligible

R17

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

19.0

19.4

19.4

19.2

0.2

0.4

Negligible

R18

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

19.9

20.5

20.5

20.3

0.4

0.9

Negligible

R19

Victoria Rd

18.0

17.8

17.8

17.8

-0.2

-0.5

Negligible

R20

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

19.9

20.2

20.2

20.0

0.0

0.1

Negligible

19.4

19.6

19.6

19.6

0.2

0.5

Negligible

20.7

20.9

20.9

20.9

0.2

0.6

Negligible

18.4

18.4

18.4

18.3

0.0

-0.1

Negligible

R21
R22
R23

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)
Cambridge Rd
(A2043)
Albert Rd

A39

A40

Nam
e

Road

PreSchem
e
(µg/m³
)

With
[Octobe
r]
(µg/m³)

With
[Januar
y]
(µg/m³)

With
[April]
(µg/m³
)

April – Pre
Scheme
(µg/m³)

Percenta
ge
change
relative
to
AQS (%)

R17

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

32.7

34.5

32.8

33.5

0.8

2.0

R18

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

39.9

43.0

40.8

42.1

2.2

5.5

R19

Victoria Rd

27.8

26.4

26.2

26.6

-1.2

-3.0

R20

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)

37.0

37.9

36.1

37.0

0.0

0.0

35.6

36.9

35.1

36.7

1.0

2.6

39.9

40.9

38.6

40.9

1.0

2.6

29.4

29.4

29.1

29.4

0.0

0.0

R21
R22
R23

Cambridge Rd
(A2043)
Cambridge Rd
(A2043)
Albert Rd

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I am writing to object to the road traffic scheme proposed for Albert Road. I am aware that is intended to be a six month trial, but I do not belief a trial should go ahead until the following
points have been addressed.
Firstly there has been no consultation beforehand, apart from a select group of residents in Albert Road. From what I understand some residents in the other roads affected knew nothing
of it. As a resident of Hawks Road I was not consulted and the scheme will adversely affect me.
Secondly Albert Road is not a rat run. It is the most direct route for traffic heading towards London Road. Sending traffic down Hawks Road and up Cambridge Road is a much longer way
and adds to pollution At busy times traffic is backed up on Hawks Road and this is likely to make things much worse. Pollution levels on Hawks Road are often illegal at present, this will not
make them better.
Thirdly, much has been made of making the pupils of Saint Joseph’s School less susceptible to the effects of pollution when they are in the playground. Most of their play area isn’t on
Albert Road but on the junction of Hawks Road and Fairfield South. Backed up traffic will not improve the air quality for these pupils.
Fourthly, Hawks Road has narrow pavements that are busy before and after school with pupils both from Saint Joseph’s and King Athelstan schools. Walking through rush hour traffic will
again not improve air quality for them. The road is, during university times, busy also busy with students and always people living in the area walking into town. The current busy road
means that many people try and cycle on the pavement for their own safety. This of course compromises the safety of pedestrians, special the young, the elderly and those with disabilities
that mean they are not always aware of bicycles approaching. More traffic seems to be inviting the potential for serious accidents.
I agree that the amount of traffic in Kingston is an issue that needs addressing, but to take one small area of three streets without considering the wider impact in the surrounding area
seems very short-sighted. I would like the council to be working towards schemes that mean that car ownership is not needed to make the most of what this wonderful area has to offer.
Come on, be bold!

Objection

I would like to register my dissatisfaction with the proposal, with the impact on Hawks Road clearly not thought through. Hawks Road has significant numbers of children walk down to get to
school, the pavements ate extremely narrow and the traffic already very high. Any increase in traffic as a result of rerouting, whether creating improvements elsewhere or not, will lead to an
even more dangerous road and, more pollution and an overall reduction in the quality of journeys for people in this area.

Objection

I have just heard about your plans to implement a modal filter on Albert Road and I would like to formally object.
I am someone who performs an essential job for the London Fire Brigade which requires me to drive for 2.5 hours to Bermondsey and back every day (even in peak lockdown). Little
shortcuts such as this are little saviors to what can be a horrible commute. 5 minutes may not seem like a lot but they do add up when it’s twice a day! I wish my job could be done with a
laptop from the comfort of my home but this is sadly not the case and I do not appreciate being further penalised for it.
It is a shame that some drivers speed and drive dangerously but rather than penalising all hard working commuters, you should use the existing policing powers to bring this under control.
The traffic in Kingston is already ridiculous and measures like this will only make it worse.

Objection

I would like to formally object to this temporary road closure. It has simply succeeded in increasing the traffic on Fairfield South / Hawks Rd and the junctions with Villers Rd and Cambridge
Rd. Moving traffic from one road to another with minimal consultation is unfair. I have instantly noted a significant increase in stationary traffic jams outside my property, as well as a
significant increase in journey times.
This has been an ill thought out adjustment which has simply displaced traffic from a relatively quiet road on to moderately busy road; thus decreasing air quality significantly outside and
inside my property. This does little to promote active travel or make Kingston cleaner and greener - it simply pushes the problem from one road to another!
I'm quite cross about this and would plead with you to please reconsider the wisdom in this trial and immediately abandon it.
Also please reopen Kingston bridge fully as this is creating hellish traffic in the town centre.

Objection

I am submitting the objection to closing Albert road (as a turn from Fairfield S/Hawks roads) for the through traffic in order to bypass road junction with Cambridge Road. As a regular user
of this route, I would like to bring your attention to the massive traffic delays that started occurring since the road was closed yesterday afternoon, on 07/09/2020. The traffic jam started at
Fairfield road, and continued through until the Cambridge road traffic light. This morning the situation has not improved.
Instead of a quick journey, cars are stuck in the traffic at Fairfield S/Hawks road now for at least 20 minutes, which affects the air quality. It is causing frustration from the drivers, waiting
and those trying to turn left/right from the side roads, creating the risk of dangerous road situations.

A41

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments

Neither object nor support I first emailed on 05.09.20 on behalf of residents to ask you to clarify the situation with the apparent lack of Risk Assessment.
I have still not received a response from anyone on this matter. The trial is now approximately 24 hours old and there is still no information forthcoming as to whether you have a Risk
Assessment in place. The opening of the trial yesterday was downright dangerous and it was lucky that there was not an accident or worse.
Failure to have a certified Risk Assessment in place significantly threatens public safety and cannot possibly be legal. The notion of completing a Risk Assessment as part of the trial is
unacceptable because it means there are potential hazards which have not been considered, and we witnessed this yesterday. It leaves you wide open to being held responsible in the
event of an accident or injury occurring in the interim. For a trial related to a scheme which professes to be all about increasing safety on our streets this would be laughable if it weren't so
frightening.
You must all have picked up on the strength of feeling regarding this matter both via emails and the posts on social media (particularly in the FB Kingston Neighbourhood Group). People
are angry with the way in which the trial has been implemented. They are also questioning the lack of consultation and choice of roads, and there is widespread disbelief at the sheer lack of
planning and assessment.
Please do your residents the courtesy of explaining why you have not adequately scoped out/assessed in preparation for this trial, and why you feel it is acceptable to continue with a trial
that puts us all at risk.
Objection

Today at 15:50 an emergency vehicle was severerly delayed on Hawks Road heading to the Cambridge Road as a consequence of bad traffic.
Please remove this absurd test.

Support

Hi all - just to note I think this scheme is fabulous and should be made permanent as soon as reasonably practicable. I don't live on the roads in question but pass through this junction
regularly as a pedestrian and cyclist. The removal of this complicated movement has made it feel much more safer and inviting. Cycling up and down this road also feels a lot safer. I drive
too and I've noted no additional delays from traffic. It's clearly a scheme that people will look at in a year or so's time and think 'why on earth didn't we do this years ago!'. Hope the
miserable lot aren't being too mean - keep up the good work councillors and officers.

A42

Neither object nor support Resident on Hawks Road, a keen cyclist and occasionally drive.
TRAFFIC & POLLUTION
On a day to day basis Hawks Road is a busy, but acceptable road. If I wait for a moment, I can usually mange to pull off the drive after a few minutes.
DAY 1
This morning the traffic is a complete stand still, backed up past our house from the Cambridge Road. Traffic pollution concerns as cars are stationary with their engines switched on.
Traffic is effecting Hawks Road residents and those turning onto Hawks Road from Bonnerhill Road, Portland Road, Somerset Road, Rowlls Road, cars turning right from Villiers Road and
passing Fairfield South.
RAT RUN, SPEEDING AND AIR POLLUTION
Having lived on Hawks Road for 12 years, the traffic is generally busy.
Speed bumps effect the speed you can drive on Alfred Road without damaging your car. People do drive too fast on Hawks Road also, (20mph). I have 2 children and guide them carefully
out of my front door to school. The normally busy road now has stationary cars directly outside my home. There are many other families with children living on Hawks Road. By initiating this
this Low traffic Neighbourhood, the stationary traffic is far heavier for those living on the surrounding roads walking and volume of traffic greater for cars trying to head east, Norbiton, A3,
New Malden. Is consequently on the road for longer.
Cars still with engines on, create more pollution than moving cars. Prior to the change in road lay out, there are between 3-6 cars at the top of Alfred road when turning onto the one way
system. This morning there were 29 cars sat stationary on Hawks Road.
AIM FOR ‘ACTIVE TRAVEL’
Stationary cars are adverse to active travel.
REDUCE TRAFFIC
The country is amidst a global pandemic. Every family I know is working ad hoc times, some at home, some in the office, some aiming to change their work days and times over the coming
months. Schools have just re-started, people are driving when normally they would take transport.
How will the potential change in traffic be calculated accurately when there are so many variables in effect at one time?
(Please note, the vehicle monitoring system installed last week on Hawks Road broke several days later and may be giving false readings for the low traffic neighbourhood trial. As of this
morning, it has not been mended)
SAFER WALKING, BIKING
Am a keen cyclist and walker and am keen for both of these. Stationary traffic does not help any residents in the area. Wider pavements and narrower road / bollards seems a more
sensible way of controlling traffic, keeping it moving, limiting some vehicles and not creating excessive areas of very high pollution.
I would like to add, the gates added to the ‘Fairfield’ Park and perimeter pathway, have created a massive positive change to both park usage and people walking to and from town.
A very concerned Hawks Road resident.

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I wish to register my formal objection to the temporary closure of Albert Road reference KingMap0045.
The reasons being:
Potential increase in pollution from idling vehicles due to continual traffic jams along Hawks Road, along Fairfield into Kingston and Villiers Road. Is anyone measuring the pollution levels
which must have increased from all the standing traffic? Even if signs are put up asking motorists not to idle engines, many people disregard this or the traffic just crawls forward anyway.
Delays to emergency vehicles. I saw an ambulance with sirens on yesterday which could not get down Hawks Road so it had to drive down Bonner Hill Road to get further along to the
traffic lights via the back streets.
K1 and K4 buses with passengers are held up. Are the buses running late now? Is there any data to support this?
Schools have vehicles constantly idling outside causing pollution and possibly extra vehicle hazards.
Cyclists cannot cycle down the roads with traffic jams as the roads are not wide enough. Thus affects me a lot as I cycle along these roads frequently to and from my studio and other
workplaces. I either have to cycle past the traffic on the right hand side which is into oncoming traffic, or just wait in polluting exhaust fumes.
Vehicles trying to join traffic block the lights at the Villiers Road junction making it unsafe to cross sometimes when the pedestrian lights are green.
Commuters and other road users are delayed. I can no longer drive to my studio in Hawks Road to collect materials before I teach in Richmond once a week, because it adds at least half
an hour to my journey waiting in traffic jams.
People and cars going to the cemetery are delayed.
Have the shops and businesses been consulted and how is it affecting their trade / customers?
People living in Hawks Road and other congested roads as a result of this trial now have a car park outside their properties. This is a pollution and access issue to the side roads.
All in all, the only people benefiting are a handful of people in Albert Road and the two adjacent roads. There have never been traffic jams of this magnitude in Albert Road in the past
because at the end of Albert Road there are no traffic lights and vehicles flow freely into the traffic.
I really hope that the trial does not go on for six months because in a week it has already caused misery for 1,000’s of people.

Objection

I object to the scheme to block traffic in Albert Road & Hawks Road. It will cause more pollution through more congestion.

Objection

I am writing about the newly added LTN on Albert Road in Kingston (KingMap0045). I am writing to raise my concerns as it has added extra traffic on the nearby surrounding roads which
now done the opposite of reducing pollution. Kingston Council needs to review the LTN immediately as it has become unbearable and unstainable.
Please see the petition raised by a local resident https://www.change.org/p/rb-kingston-council-and-tfl-against-the-albert-road-kingston-ltn?redirect=false

Objection

I would like to formally object to the LTN closure of Albert Road. The increased traffic on Hawks Road is totally unacceptable.
It's not clear what the closure is trying to achieve- what does good look like? What's a good outcome, do you know? Because it can't be no traffic on 3 roads and significant increased traffic
for others. On Hawks Road there is regularly grid locked or stationary traffic, including heavy goods vehicles. Do you think the residents of Hawks Road are somehow lesser citizens
unworthy of clean air? The pavements are so narrow and I walk my small children to school every day with no protection from the grid locked traffic. We have witnessed cars banking the
pavements to let emergency vehicles passed, cyclists cycling on the pavements because there's nowhere for them to go. The current and immediate danger for cyclists and pedestrians is
increased, not to mention the increased pollution.
But what is the purpose of the closure? What concerns me is that because you don't really know what it is, the limited data that you collect will be worthless. Will you average the increased
cars passing over a day or longer? How will you take into account that the grid lock might only be for 5 hours a day but this occurs at the time when kids are travelling to school? Is it
reasonable for any increased levels of traffic on Hawks Road? If so, why? For what overall benefit?
It seems that we are part of an experiment with no hypothesis. So how can you therefore determine the outcome is acceptable to all concerned if you don't really know what you're trying to
achieve?
What about the pollution, did you monitor pollution before the trial started?
I also don't understand why you would close down a perfectly reasonable route to the one way system which forces people to drive further around the corner, surely this creates increased
length car journeys and pollution in Kingston overall?
How is it fair to punish some residents for the benefit of a tiny percentage? I don't buy the 'over time behaviours will change argument'. It might only have been 3 weeks so far but it's pretty
obvious that in these times people aren't going to stop using their cars for these kind of journeys or that they will pick an alternative route.
I don't support a 6 month trial when you're only collecting data for 3 individual weeks. If the final data set is due to be collected in January, shouldn't the trial be finished after that, pending a
decision? It's already pretty obvious that the dangers and discomfort to residents of Hawks Road are unacceptable and I urge you to consider drawing the consultation and trial to an end to
avoid further upset and danger to residents, all of whom should be treated equally.

Objection

As an ordinary person living in the Albert Road area, I am writing to you to warn you that blocking the Albert road (TMO-P302) has caused devastating results and it can be very dangerous.
You can easily see many police cars, ambulances, buses, etc stuck in the congestions. In the case of any fire, no firefighter truck can reach the area on time and there will be catastrophic
consequences. Would you unblock the road as soon as possible and terminate the agony that you have caused, please?

A43

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
Heavier traffic causing more pollution and danger to cyclists and pedestrians in this area – have seen many cyclists on the pavement in Hawks Rd as there is so much more traffic. Also
very dangerous walking along that pavement now and virtually impossible to socially distance now as bikes on the pavement, can’t go into the road as far too much traffic.
4 schools in the area so it is a ridiculous place to stop traffic filtering through. Pollution and traffic noise increased in Hawks Rd and St Joseph’s school now has more car pollution pumping
into their playground than ever.
Also Fairfield – a nice open space for local residents particularly for those without gardens – again is filled with fumes from the stand still traffic. Residents in the Cambridge Estate and
along Hawks road are suffering due to this and also Villiers Rd traffic is hideous, increasing pollution and risks to the many children and families in the area. For example at King Athelstan
School – I see the school staff every morning trying to socially distance, line up pupils etc and the whole time traffic at a standstill right next to the school.
Also have major concerns about this road closures impact on emergency vehicles ability to get through the area - Hawks Rd is so narrow, nowhere for cars to move to if an emergency
vehicle needs access.
This scheme is basically putting our lives at risk in Kingston. How can this be a good use of our money to improve pollution in the area?
Do the sensible thing to save locals live and re-open Albert Rd – re-think the scheme, consult with residents BEFORE implementing schemes that we know just won’t work, work together
with local residents to draft a plan which will be practicable for locals, emergency services, local schools and we can all help to reduce pollution.

Objection

I am writing to register a formal objection to the above scheme.
It has made my journey to work longer, with the additional time spent sitting in traffic with the engine running, spewing out exhaust fumes and increasing my petrol consumption.
Meanwhile I have not seen any extra cyclists or pedestrians using Albert Road.
Which roads are within the Albert Road neighborhood? How many roads constitutes a "neighborhood"?
I don't think Albert Road and surrounding roads can be considered a residential neighborhood. It's a mixed use area with housing, business, shops etc and it's completely inappropriate to
close off Albert Road in this context.
I trust you are collecting data on the increase in cyclists and pedestrians along Albert Road as you will need this to prove that your trial has been successful.
I trust you are also collecting data on the increase in traffic congestion on the surrounding roads and the negative impact this is having on the residents of Hawks Road in particular.
When and how will you be providing this data to the residents of RBK?
I look forward to your response,
I m a resident in Albert road and I would like to formally object in the proposed plans for low traffic changes in Albert road
So far your temporary changes make my every day going to work and coming back a nightmare .....
I live near the bottom of Albert road and I used to access the A308 easily most of the times .....just down Albert road and then onto A308....now with changes I have to do a big circle via
Victoria road to A2043 meeting traffic jam and traffic lights most of the times to access the A308 ......
The same limitations and traffic jams apply on my way back home.....plus I’m now limited to only one road access to my house ....driving through A308,A2043 and then Church road in order
to access Albert road.
I can’t access no more Albert road via Fairfield south road .....instead if I want to use that route depending on traffic I have to continue all the way to Hawks road and then turn onto A2043
....in order to access Church road and Albert road doing an unnecessary almost full circle in order to access my house .....this is really frustrating!!!
(Pls see the map below )
Before everything was much easier ......and the traffic was not that heavy most of times during the day in Albert road (believe me I live there )so I don’t see the reason behind your
proposals.
So far the temporary traffic changes are no solving any traffic problems and I don’t see our lives getting any better really because of your traffic changes
instead it’s adding frustration ,traffic nightmares and are NO helping at all us the residents.

Objection

Objection

The pictures here are not about rush hour traffic! They are not about a rainy weather. It is a wonderful weather on a Saturday morning, a time that always used to be very quiet! Since the
council has blocked the Albert Road (TMO-P302) the whole neighbourhood e.g. Hawk street, Fairfield South, etc is packed with cars, busses, ambulances, police cars, stuck in traffic jams,
and we never see any quiet time anymore. The queue of cars starts from Wheatfield road in a way that they cannot enter from Wheatfield road to Orchard Road as the whole streets
(Orchard Road, Fairfield South, Hawks Road, up to Cambridge road are packed. Even Villiers Road is badly affected. People are dying inside ambulances, or waiting for ambulances.
People are dying because of the emission of poisonous gases. And more people will die in the case of a fire, as there is no way that a fire truck can be there on time. It is only good for
thieves and criminals, as they know no police car can help the victims in a blocked neighbourhood. Would you unblock the Alfred road as soon as possible please?

A44

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I am writing a formal letter of objection to the following Low Traffic Neighbourhood Schemes:
Albert Road - KingMap0045
Lower Ham Road - TMO-P302
King Charles Road - TMO-P306
I am writing with the following objections:
1) the 6 month 'trial' period of this scheme is far too long. Local and national leaders announce changes to coronavirus legislation up to every 3 weeks, so 6 months (almost 9 times that
amount of changes) seems ludicrous. The scheme needs to adapt to the every-changing legislation so it can work with the community, rather than against it as it is doing now.
2) The scheme increases traffic. Having read through the documentation online, I still don't understand how closing said roads are supposed to help traffic flow. With the cold and wet winter
months approaching many more people want to use their personal vehicles compared to walking or cycling. Therefore, these road closures don't benefit anyone since non-motor users don't
use them, and motor users can't use them, and this creates more traffic on the limited number of roads available left to drive on.
3) Cyclists. Cyclists are a massive problem in Kingston anyway because with ample cycle lanes they still cycle on the much narrower roads. The same thing has happened with each LTN
scheme. Cyclists are not using the blocked off roads designated for them, and are instead using the chock-a-block roads that regular motorists have to use.
Basically, the scheme is highly flawed and should end as soon as the trial period ends, if not before.

Support

I would like to offer my support for the new low Traffic neighbourhood Scheme created recently in Victoria Road Albert Road.
Since the new scheme started Victoria Road has been a pleasant, traffic jam free, residential road. Easily accessed via Albert Road from London Road or Church Road from Cambridge
Road the cars flow without the hindrance caused by drivers using the roads as a cut through. Previously it could sometimes take up to 20 minutes to exit the car park onto Victoria Road
and reach Cambridge Road at 630pm as the cars were all sitting in a solid jam. Parents collecting children from the nursery by car no longer have an excuse for being late due to the traffic.
Some parents not being able to access Albert Road by car from Hawks Road now cycle or walk to collect their children being more environmentally friendly. The pollution levels appear to
have lowered in the short time the changes have been in effect. In my opinion it would be a step back to reverse this scheme

Objection

I'd like to raise my concerns about the recent closure of Albert, Victoria and Church roads to vehicles and the subsequent impact it's having on the volume of traffic on Hawks road.
As I'm sure you are aware, said volume has rocketed since these closures have been implemented, and congestion is especially bad during lunchtime and rush hours. However, aside from
idle cars sitting on the road and the inevitable noise and air pollution, my main concern is the delay it is causing to emergency vehicles. I have seen ambulances get 'stuck' many times – so
much so that it seems to be becoming a daily occurrence. Police cars and fire engines have also fallen victim to the gridlocked traffic.
I have signed the petition against these road closures and hope my concerns (which I know are widely shared with my neighbours) aren't ignored.

Objection

My observations on the closure of Albert Road (“TMO P302").
First of all I would challenge your designation of it as a “rat run”. It has been for decades a well-established and accepted route leading to Kingston centre and affords relief to the overburdened Cambridge Road. It would seem that labelling it as a rat run has provided the justification for this scheme. There is also the issue of allowing cyclists to continue to come out of
Albert Road onto Hawks Road. Over the time that this scheme has been operating, it has been fraught with danger, as the cyclists come out almost at the traffic lights. It is not always easy
to see them, as their lights (if they have any) are at right angles to the Hawks Rd traffic, and they are weaving in and out to get into their required lane. The current congestion at this
junction is not going to help. The other point re cyclists is that I would have thought that in the last 6 months or so all those willing and able to switch to cycling have already done so and
there are not many left who will be persuaded by this scheme.
My observations over the time this scheme has been in place are that it is resulting in massive tailbacks along Hawks Rd towards the Cambridge Rd junction traffic lights. This is also
occurring at times well outside what you would term peak hours. As you can imagine, this has had a knock-on effect on traffic emerging from Villiers Rd. This all means that, while Albert Rd
may have less noise and pollution, it is all transferred to Villiers Rd, Hawks Rd and further afield and multiplied by several degrees due to stationary traffic. I note that recent “keep clear”
notices have appeared at junctions on Hawks Rd. This may be helpful to allow people to make a right turn into the traffic but does nothing to relieve the congestion.
Another effect is that the traffic down Cambridge Rd towards the London Rd junction is nose-to-tail most of the time, thus impeding people who need to get into the left hand or right hand
lane for turning. At the junction we now have cars in the left hand lane turning right ( something that used to be possible before you monkeyed round with the lanes) and cars in the right
hand lane turning left, with the obvious potential for accidents.
Also, to go into Kingston to cross the bridge, one now has to go along Fairfield S and do a loop back to the College roundabout. This is adding about 40% on a journey to get you level
with, say, Wilco. Not a lot in the big scheme of things, but the cumulative effect could be significant.
I note that your extremely unexciting planters suggest this closure is doomed to be temporary. Let’s hope so.

A45

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I am formally objecting to the closure of Albert Road.
The road closure continues to contribute to horrendous increased traffic queues along Hawks Road at all times of the day, not just during the morning peak. I can see Albert Road from my
office. I'm there for 5 hours a day, at various times between 8.30am and 4pm and I have seen one cyclist on Albert Road during that time.
The road closure will obviously have reduced traffic on Albert Road but has simultaneously contributed to increased traffic on Hawks Road with the associated extra pollution and petrol
consumption, increased journey times along with detriment to residents and pedestrians and cyclists on Hawks Road.
From my observations it has not resulted in any significant increase in cyclists or pedestrians on Albert Road which I know was one of its aims. The detrimental effect of the closure to the
residents and motorists on Hawks Road far outweighs the benefit to a handful of residents on Albert and Church Road.
The residents who have chosen to live on Albert and Church Road would have been well aware that being located in a busy town centre would mean they chose to live on a busy
thoroughfare and the house prices would have reflected that compared to other roads in the vicinity which are clearly quieter such as Minerva Road and Caversham Road. They should
have researched the nature of the road before choosing to live there and it is unreasonable of them to complain about it being busy once they have moved there. You have effectively
created a private road and it is unfair to expect tax payers to maintain the road when they are prevented from using it.
I would like to see the council's data showing usage by cyclists and pedestrians since the closure as that was one of the aims of closing the road. If there has been little/no increase then
clearly the trial has shown there is no benefit or increase in "active travel" as a result of closing the road.
The DfT has clearly said that councils are required to demonstrate that the measures confer a genuine benefit otherwise funding will be withdrawn and I look forward to seeing your
accurate data in this respect. If the disadvantages outweigh the advantages which they do in my opinion, then clearly there has been no genuine benefit by the road closure. The goal is to
create a low traffic neighbourhood, not merely a low traffic road and this has clearly not been achieved.

Objection

Since closing off the dog-leg turn from Villiers into Albert Road (now cycles only) from Fairfield South/Hawks Road, the traffic build up on Villiers and consequentially on Hawks can at times
be horrific. On Villiers I have seen it backed up above the mini roundabout with Grove/Linfield, and also all the way down Fairfield South into Hawks awaiting the lights at the intersection
with Kingston Road (A2043).
What this means is that anyone from Surbiton heading for London Road (left to Kingston, or right to say ASDA) or even worse, the hospital via Hawks must now take the long route - i.e
more petrol pollution, and sometimes must queue for up to 20 minutes i.e. terrible pollution. I play tennis at the Kings Rec. courts on Kingston Road - it is the only way I can get there, and
I've experienced these delays frequently. I am a keen supporter of environmental causes, but to close a street for the odd cyclist and produce as a result huge polluting traffic jams is the
height of absurdity.

Support

I strongly support the excellent changes made on behalf of the local residents group for Albert, Victoria and Church roads.
As residents of Albert road for over 30 years we very much appreciate the reduction in heavy through traffic this new quieter neighbourhood initiative has brought. Less pollution, easier
parking for residents, safer road crossing for pedestrians, and less thumping into the road humps by heavy lorries early in the morning coming from the recycling site on Villiers road are just
some of the reasons we strongly support this sensible move by our borough.
Please make it a permanent arrangement!

A46

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support
Support

Comments
I am writing with respect to the LTN trial and consultation that is currently underway in the area.
Please find attached a copy of my statement, supporting the LTN and outlining the reasons as to why, I believe, it should be made permanent. I trust all the points raised will be seriously
considered in the process.
I look forward to hearing further from you in relation to the consultation in due course.

As a resident of Albert Road , a cyclist, a pedestrian and a motorists I
can honestly say there has been no disadvantage noted when driving
in the area and I have not encountered any difficulty or delays in
getting around by car. Albert Road was primarily used as a “short
cut” for motorists to get around. When looked at geographically it
only offers the opportunity to avoid traffic lights and/or possibly cut
a small corner/ couple of minutes off a journey. I cannot see that
keeping it as a through road is of any great advantage to the general
traffic flow in Kingston.
I would also like to point out that unlike Villiers Road and Hawks
Road, Albert Road (and Victoria and Church Roads) were never
designed or built as through routes. Until the construction of
Kingston’s gyratory (in the 1960s?) Albert Road was a no through
road, there was simply a path (like the one through to Minerva Road)
down to London Road. This can be verified by referring back to the
old OS maps which are very interesting. I believe that there has been
some inclination “to blame” the LTN for congestion on Hawks Road,
which could not realistically be the case because Albert Road has
been a one way street, so in effect all the traffic has to come back
somehow using the various alternatives. Hawks Road has historically

A47

Albert Road
Since the introduction of the “low traffic neighbourhood” scheme in
Albert Road, I have noticed a general increase in usage by
pedestrians, cyclists, families with babies in buggy’s and most
significantly wheelchair/disabled buggy’s. The LTN has encouraged
more alternative usage due to the significant improvement in how
people can get around and access the neighbourhood whilst feeling
safe. The pavements are safer to walk on and there are now
opportunities to move over and to pass other people on the street
without fear of being run over by a speeding car or HGV - The HGV
ban in this area has been widely ignored before the LTN as has the
speed limit. The LTN also allows cyclist and disabled users to use the
street both ways safely. As time goes by and with a continued
promotion of the health benefits associated with physical exercise,
coupled with safer streets thanks to LTN’s, we should see these
numbers increase even further. I would also add that it is nice, at the
moment, to be actually able to see and meet people on the street
which was more difficult before.
As well as the health benefits that come with physical exercise, the
LTN has also brought the neighbourhood together and residents
have enjoyed caring for the planted containers. For the future, I
can’t help but thinking how nice it would be to have community
gardens in the area (as in Manorgate Road for example), bringing
with them many more health benefits. As has been well
documented, gardening is known for its therapeutic qualities and
positive effect on physical and mental well- being. Community spaces
help to bring people together, build resilient neighbourhoods and
offer respite to those living in isolation. All this in turn takes pressure
off other services.

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support
Support

Comments

A48

The Case for Retaining the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood - November 2020
Background.
This representation is from Tricorn Residents Association, the long standing Association for residents of Victoria, Albert and Church Roads, KT1. These three streets, together with Camm
Gardens, make up the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN).
Residents have long held concerns regarding the growing level of Kingston bound traffic using Albert and Victoria Roads in particular as a 'rat run' avoiding congestion at the junctions of
Hawks Road and Cambridge Road and again at the Cambridge Road / London Road junction.
The Albert Road triangle – unlike Hawks Road and Villiers Road - was not built for heavy or through traffic. Access to London Road only came about with the construction of Kingston”s
gyratory system in the 1960s and 70s.. Historically Minerva and Caversham Roads were through roads to London Road. Their residents now live in a de facto LTN.
Albert Road in particular has suffered very high levels of pollution for many years. This is clearly shown on maps provided with the Council's Air Quality Action Plan of April 2016.
Despite the neighbourhood being a part of the local HGV exclusion area, this lorry ban is widely disregarded, and virtually unenforced. This disregard includes local HGV traffic from the
postal sorting depot, Thames Water's sites, and the Council's own recycling centre, all off Villiers Road. Residents report damage to property from vibrations from this heavy traffic, and
many of us find the rooms and gardens facing the street have become unsuitable for their intended use because of the noise and vibration. Until recently some of the worst offenders were
busses returning empty to depot. We also had coaches picking up and dropping off Grammar School pupils (and waiting, backed up in Albert Road) at the alleyway linking to Minerva Road
and the school.
Two schools have entrances on the neighbourhood's streets (St. Joseph's and the Victoria Nursery) A further three are in the immediate area (The Grammar, Tiffin and King Athelstan) in
addition to the University's Knight's Park Campus. The provision of 'Safe Routes to Schools' is a long standing national and local policy. We have received expression of support from the
University and several of these schools
Because of these problems Tricorn submitted its own traffic calming proposals in 2016. Despite constructive discussion these were not taken up by the council at that time The present Low
Traffic Neighbourhood appears to have universal support of residents within the LTN, despite misinformation from the campaign against the LTN leading to a small number of residents
signing the petition against the LTN before it was implemented. Our support group's petition in support of the LTN closes on Thursday 19th November. Now that the scheme has bedded in
this representation is timed to coincide with the presentation of our petition in support of the LTN. It must be noted that many potential signatories were unable to successfully complete the
process on line.
It is unfortunate that so little information was provided across the borough before the commencement of the LTN experiments. Both residents and road users should have been given more
warning before implementation. This in itself caused a huge amount of ill feeling even amongst those who stood to gain from the LTN. This was compounded by misinformation from the
'anti' campaign before the scheme was implemented. The unfortunate handling of the pre-implementation phase must not be allowed to jeopardise an otherwise first class scheme. To its
credit, the council has admitted this should have been handled better.
Long standing LTNs exist around Bonner Hill Road – once an important 'rat run', and Clevedon Road, again historically a 'rat run'. Road closures here are no longer questioned. The
extensive Knights Park Area between Villiers Road and Wheatfield Way, again a de facto LTN, is long standing and accepted without question. It is worthy of note that much of the criticism
of the new LTNs come from people already benefiting from these historic LTNs.
The present situation (November 2020)
As noted above, most of the traffic which used the Albert Road 'rat run' for Kingston town centre seems to come from Surbiton via Villiers Road. This traffic arrives at the Hawks Road
junction without warning of the LTN before it is committed to the junction. A sign suggesting the alternative town centre route at the roundabout at the Lower Marsh Lane (Duke of
Buckingham) roundabout via Grove Lane, or a little further down, Portland Road would allow some of the traffic to divert in good time. Both these roads are little used, and Grove Lane in
particular appears to have the required capacity.
Whilst we do not have access to the traffic flow information recorded immediately before the implementation and the first two weeks of the scheme, nor the later monitoring mid to late
October it is our perception that the traffic congestion on Hawks Road is not significantly worse than before implementation, and on Fairfield South there has been no significant change.
Tailbacks do occur at the morning and evening peaks, particularly in term time but as Albert Road was a one way street, 'rat running' traffic always had to use the alternative routes when
returning.
Kingston's Highways Department should have the 2016 monitoring records made for our earlier request for traffic calming measures without the influence of COVID Restrictions. It is our
opinion that adjustments to the phasing of the traffic signals at (in particular) the Hawks Road / Cambridge Road junction and the integration of the Villiers Road / Hawks Road Junction
signals with these would improve the situation on Hawks Road.
The LTN is held responsible by those opposed to it for delays on roads which are completely unaffected by this LTN. For example congestion on Wheatfield Way at Orchard Road junction
has been blamed on the LTN. An extreme case is the posting on 'Nextdoor' to the effect that as a result of the closure of Albert Road, the correspondent's journey was increased by an
additional 10 miles!
A noticeable increase in pedestrian and cycle traffic has been seen in the LTN. This will not be recorded by the traffic monitoring 'tubes'. The streets are now used by people, not cars.
Children are able to play outside in relative safety and make their way safely to school on foot, scooter or cycle in greater numbers. For cyclists the LTN, with the new crossing at 100
London Road, provides a useful link in the Go-Cycle network between North / South and East / West routes avoiding the busy Cambridge / London Road Junction. We have noticed
increased ambulance traffic on the Albert and Victoria Roads link to Cambridge Road. This may be the drivers choosing this quiet route back to the hospital (now Albert Road runs North South) without the need for sirens, advisable when stroke and heart attack patients need to be kept calm.
Community bonding has increased locally despite COVID restrictions - We feel we have reclaimed our streets: The air in our streets is cleaner, traffic volumes and noise has been hugely
reduced, we can hear birdsong.
Conclusions
It is local and national policy to reduce car use in urban areas for the benefit of all. Those reluctant to consider alternatives will be the most vocal in their opposition to traffic reduction
measures. See Government advice issued on 13/11/20: https://www.gov.uk/government/news/175-million-more-for-cycling-and-walking-as-research-shows-public-support “In London,
independent polling by Redfield & Wilton shows 19% of people oppose , 52% support them and 25% are neutral. Surveys are also being conducted of residents in individual where roads
have been closed. The first of these, in south London, found 56% wanted to keep the scheme, against 38% who wanted to remove it.”

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I would like to formally object to the albert road LTN
As a resident of villiers road i have noticed the following since the Albert Road LTN trial.
Increase in traffic wait time on Villiers road the traffic time on villiers road has increased, there is now frequently traffic at standstill outside my house, and often queues past the King
Athelstan School. Much more so than before and dread to think what this will be like once the virus goes.
The only time it was like this before was during road repairs on albert road.
The traffic on Hawks road and south fairfield has increased noticeably particularly on Hawks road where cars seem to queue all the way past villiers and down south fairfield.
I have witnessed cyclists having to actually mount and ride on the pavement to avoid the horrendous traffic on hawks road (thats not great for pedestrian safety but i can see why they are
doing it).
Hawks road is used by pedestrians way more than Albert Road is, this LTN is creating more air pollution and worse conditions for those pedestrians.
This has definitely increased air pollution for me and my family and will impact their health, which as far as i can tell is against your stated goals for the LTN. Why should my family be
poisoned by more air pollution so the people of Albert Road can have less pollution, are they more important than my child?
I actually cannot see any clearly stated goals for what the council considers success to look like, they also either havent taken or havent published traffic and air pollution figures pre trial.
These figure would help people to understand if this is just being pushed inspite of contrarian evidence, i worry this will become a point of pride for who ever's idea this was and will not
back down to save face. The lack of quantifiable stated aim and no details on how it to be measured is shocking and frankly seems undemocratic.
There was little to no pretrial consultation if residents of villiers road.
Of the neighbours i have spoken most all but one expressed anger and resentment at the project, adding to an already rather depressing situation(covid) the other basically expressed that
gave up caring.
I hope the above is taken into consideration. I really hope the trail is cancelled,
I am not saying that i think all LTNs are a bad idea, but i am saying this one is causing me harm and as such i strongly object.

Support

I would just like to formally submit my support for the change to Albert Road traffic system.
I am a resident on Victoria Road and didn’t realise when purchasing the property how much of an issue the cut-through was. During rush hour it would often take 15 minutes just to get out
of the road onto Cambridge Road. This is because Victoria Road, as a single lane, one-way road with no traffic lights was clearly not designed to be a main thoroughfare for those travelling
between Surbiton and Richmond Park, Roehampton etc.
The new solution is not only a benefit to the local residents, but environmentally. This is because cars which may have spent up to 15 minutes stationary waiting to get onto Cambridge
Road, will now spend much less time stationary as the traffic is properly regulated by the traffic lights - even if it means the length of the traffic queue is a little longer along Hawks Road.

A49

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support
Objection

Comments

Neither object nor support Dear Highways Team and others,
I thought you might be interested in my analysis of the Albert Road LTA traffic count data recently published (see attached).***
For transparency I should mention that I'm a Hawks Road resident and strongly opposed to the closure, although I've tried to be thorough and objective in my analysis of the data.
I'm very happy to engage further if considered useful.

A50

I would like to submit an objection to the Albert Road LTN.
My wife and I have done a simple survey, counting the number of pedestrians and cyclists inside the LTN and along Hawks road at various times of day.
Saturday 12/09/20 between 1430 and 1530
Hawks Road
Albert Road
Pedestrians
227
52
Cyclists
50
19
Wednesday 16/09/20 between 0800 and 0900
Hawks Road
Albert Road
Pedestrians
340
192
Cyclists
80
62
Thursday 01/10/20
Hawks Road
Albert Road
Pedestrians
423
104
Cyclists
67
37
A simple walk around the area will confirm the results of the above survey, the main takeaway being that far more pedestrians and cyclists use Hawks road at all times of day than use the
streets within the LTN area. The LTN seems to benefit only those people who live within it to the detriment of the wider community who suffer:Increased Air pollution
The scheme displaces traffic onto Hawks Road which is already carrying far too much traffic including many HGVs and heavy lorries going to and from the dump. The additional traffic
causes sporadic traffic jams. I suspect that on certain days, even before the installation of the LTN pollution levels at the junction of Villiers Road and Hawks Road were probably above
legal limits. This scheme can only have increased that level.
Noise
For local residents, particularly those towards the Cambridge Road junction, there is a huge increase in the amount of stationary traffic outside their houses, increasing the amount of noise
and pollution within their houses.
Increased Danger
Traffic is often backed up across the lights at the junction of Hawks road and Villiers road, pedestrians often have to thread their way between cars to cross the road. The heavy traffic has
caused an increase in the number of cyclists using the pavements. As these are very narrow avoiding them is difficult and augments often occur between cyclists and pedestrians. Cyclists
attempting to use the road are often a great risk due to the volume of traffic.
Potential Increased Exposure to Covid 19
The pavements on Hawks Road are very narrow and well used. The increased traffic makes social distancing even more difficult than it already was.
Conclusion
Traffic flow surveys do not take into account the noise and nuisance caused by the sporadic grid lock which now regularly occurs. Success of the scheme should not be judged by volumes
of traffic, but by the traffic's impact on the local community. At present that impact has been dramatically heightened by the installation of the LTN.
Even before the LTN traffic on Hawks Road was very heavy, whereas the traffic within each individual road of the LTN was comparatively light. It seems perverse to subject the majority of
local residents to increased pollution, danger and inconvenience when there was no significant problem with traffic within the LTN area.

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments

A51

Neither object nor support Solutions: Albert Road
https://kingstonletstalk.co.uk/low-traffic-neighbourhoods/survey_tools/albert-road
To whom it may concern,
I live on Hawks Road, and I support the LTN on Albert Road however I would only vote (if I got a vote) for it to remain in place after the trial period if the council committed to fixing these
issues within the second 6 month period.
1. Traffic Flow.
During the hours of 7-10 am and 4-8 pm traffic backs up along Hawks Road and is at standstill, overflowing onto Fairfield South and Villiers Road.
Increase HGV's 3-7 am HGV's now travel along Hawks Road, not obeying the speed limit and have increased the road vibrations as a result of opening cracks inside my home.
During quiet times, vehicles speed the length of Fairfield / Hawks Road in both directions.
Solutions:
Increase green light time for traffic exiting Hawks Road travelling to A2043
Introduce contraflow measures on Hawks Road, Speed Bumps, Narrow Road ( by increase pavement or establish bike lanes)
Yellow Box on the junction at Villiers Road, Fairfield South/Hawks Road
Yellow Box on the junction at Fairfield South and Orchard Road.
Reduce Speed Limit to 20mph
Install Speed Cameras.
2. Street Design
People are avoiding public transport, as a result, more people, Drive, Walk and Cycle. With increased pedestrian traffic it is common for people to step into the road between the kerb and
the gutter, space typically where cyclists would travel. This issue is exaggerated by COVID but even after COVID goes more people will continue to Walk/Cycle (also though the LTN) and
at that junction, the pavement is narrow on all corners including the exit/entrance to the school at Fairfield park.
Solutions:
Increase the pavements at key points: Crossings, junctions, schools, shops.
Painted/Coloured Tarmac for Bike Lanes, with improved signage/markings.
3. Demonstrate the methodology in selecting the site and controls in monitoring the impact - both positive and negative. The LTN was put in place for multiple reasons, including health and
safety benefits for those in the neighbourhood on those streets (Albert Road, Victoria Road, Church Road) I don't disagree with that, but it can't be at the same cost to those on Fairfield
South, Hawks Road and Villiers Road. It has increased traffic congestion and air pollution.
Solutions:
Publish results from Traffic Studies Pre Implementation/ During Trial Period.
Continue these studies throughout the ongoing development of the area by continuing to update results during the Trial Period, and after any future changes are made to so a controlled
(quantitative) measure was in place.
Set a target for all 6 roads to be better than they were before the implementation of the LTN, and measure, monitor the improvements until it is achieved.
As a side note, I would love to see more Electic Car chargers in the local neighbourhoods in Kingston, I think that would also fit nicely with the purpose of the LTN, in addition to any reply
you wish to provide regarding my feedback and the future plans of the LTN, if you can also point me in the right direction for who best to speak to regarding plans of new electric car charge
points in Kingston I would be extremely grateful.
For the few people I know in the area,I think most would support the LTN remaining if these issues were addressed and there was transparency regarding how/why the site was selected
and the data gathered to measure the impact of the LTN. The LTN can remain but there needs to be a commitment to address the subsequent issues on Villiers, Fairfield South and Hawks
Road.
I hope the feedback is helpful and received positively and I look forward to hearing from you in the near future.

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
This is to register my formal complaint against the Albert RoadLTN.
There are so many reasons as to why this is such a ridiculous road closure, and i'm sure you've received plenty of mails outlining them, so i won't go over old ground.
But I will say, that even in these strange times, with pretty much a lock down through out this trial, the traffic has been so much worse, all around the area, which kinda defeats the whole
object of the clean air etc. argument.
I myself, when i need to go to Nrt Kingston or to New malden for instance am often sitting in prolonged traffic, spewing more fumes into the air, for longer periods of time, it's so ridiculous.
It's even pushed me to wish we lived in a Conservative run area, (and thats saying something!!) as they seemed to see how absurd these road closures were immediately, and within
days/weeks reversed the closure in Battersea/Wandsworth areas.
The local council seem to have lost the plot recently, with the amount of needless harm they seem to be doing to the area, what with the relentless push to build needless over priced flats
on every inch of spare land, (and I know this is a government initiative to have more affordable homes built, but since when is a 2 bed apartment @ 800k in the old post office development
affordable!!), and the unbelievable waste of money spent on the Little Amsterdam project, causing more road congestion and chaos, so i'm not really surprised that they are closing off
roads, with little advantage to the masses, and only to the few! They seem intent on spoiling what is a cultural and Historic town, buy turning it into a sprawling metropolis!
Plus put this e-mail very much in the opposed pile!

Objection

I would like to formally object to the closure of Albert Road to cars. As a local resident on Somerset Road there has been a significant increase in traffic using Somerset as a cut through as
the queues on Hawks Road are at a complete stand still several times a day - and this is during lockdown without the schools in action, this will only worsen as the world returns to
commuting.
My two young children are at risk of both increased air pollution and increase in cars speeding down the road impatient at the long delays.
Additionally the consequent delays up and down Villiers Road as a result of stand still queues have put another 15minutes on every single journey i make locally.
I did not sign up for this when I bought my house here, it wasn’t a scheduled planning change, residents were not consulted and I do not believe the exclusive benefits for the limited
cyclists that use Albert Road outweigh the pressure on Hawks and Somerset Roads.
Albert Road can be used for cyclists, pedestrians and cars, there is absolutely no benefit to closing it, particularly without consulting the residents affected.
I would like to be notified when the trial period is over so that myself and the other local residents can consult and formally object.
Looking forward to an acknowledgment of this complaint and further discussion on any other plans that this change impacts.
I would like to object to the low traffic neighbourhood scheme which saw Albert Road closing from Hawks Road. I live on Hawks Road and have given the scheme a fair trial before
submitting my comments.
The extra traffic we have on Hawks Road is unbelievable, especially seeing as we are in a national lockdown - I dread to imagine what it will be like when lockdown is lifted. For those brief
few weeks in December the traffic was insane. There were queues outside my house all day long.
I am lucky to be able to walk most places but walking along Hawks Road is now a horrible experience with the extra cars and fumes from them. I push my daughter in her pram and hate to
think what it’s doing to her lungs with the exhausts almost level with her.
Not only the fumes but the noise pollution too - hearing engines chugging away in traffic, people’s music blaring from their radios and then the ambulances sirens as they struggle to get
through the traffic.
During the first lockdown our road was so quiet, because Albert Road was still open then. I have really noticed the difference and it’s not pleasant. Albert Road doesn’t need to be a mainly
pedestrian road as there’s the park you can walk down which is a much nicer route anyway.
With the vaccine clinic being on Hawks Road I really think it makes sense for the road to be as clear as possible, especially as we are the main road from Surbiton to the hospital for
ambulances.
I really don’t think this is a fair trial with it being done during lockdowns. Please listen to all the residents who object to this.

Objection

Support

I would like to lodge a representation in support of EXPERIMENTAL ROAD CLOSURE AND ONE-WAY WORKING - ALBERT ROAD AND CHURCH ROAD, KINGSTON (REF.
KINGMAP0045).
I would like to see the Experimental Order made permanent as it benefits vulnerable road users, including pedestrians and cyclists and has had minimal impact on surrounding roads

A52

Objection

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I wish to express strong support for making the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood permanent now the 6 month’s public consultation period nears its end.
When the council first proposed Kingston's LTNs, a set of ambitions for the schemes were published:
"A low traffic neighbourhood is a residential area where ‘through’ motor traffic is discouraged or removed, and the remaining space is improved for residents.
... created using barriers which allow walking and cycling through a certain street or area, but restrict access to motor vehicles. Physical barriers …planters or signs are strategically placed
to prevent vehicle access on selected roads to stop motorists using the area as a cut-through."
The Albert Road LTN has achieved all this with ease, whilst presenting no noticeable access problems for residents.
In addition, air quality has noticeably improved. Walking and cycling in the general neighbourhood - not just the three roads making up the LTN - is easier with improved connectivity. We
have improved safety for children walking, scooting and cycling to the three schools within this LTN.
Put simply, the whole area is more pleasant.
Quality of life within the LTN has improved beyond my original expectations and now all is bedding down the social media clamour against the LTN from rat runners has almost ceased. The
reduced use of cars encouraged by all LTNs contributes to the nation’s target of reduced CO2 emissions - something we must achieve.
The experiment is a success and the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood must be made permanent.

Support

Please keep our roads as a low traffic zone. Since the LTN has been implemented the impact has been so positive in the area. Less traffic has meant
1. We as residents can meet and interact with our neighbours more creating a friendly supportive community.
2. Wheelchairs and disabled buggies can get around easily using the road as the pavements are very narrow and difficult to use
3. The road is quieter and as the houses are very close to road this has had an impact on noise pollution inside and outside the home. The difference has been notable as the house does
not shake with vibrations from large trucks and lorries speeding past as much anymore.
4. Children can walk to school on the street with an easy carefree attitude
5. Everybody can cycle with more freedom and use the roads as through ways to other cycle routes, to the town and the park, prior to LTN safe connecting cycle routes were not available,
the LTN has really connected safe cycle routes.
6. The LTN offers an opportunity to plant more plants and trees on this route, as we know all plants all aids towards cleaning the air.
7. The more we offer safe alternative walking and cycling routes such as this the more it will encourage people to use them in the future.
I hope the council makes a sensible, progressive decision to keep the LTN at Albert Road for the sake of the whole community well being in Kingston and the future of cleaner air for us all
and generations to come. The advantages in the long term and benefits for the wider community, I feel, far outweigh the small inconvenience that some may claim it may cause.
Thanks for giving it a trial and I do hope for all our sakes and for future generations it is made a permanent fixture.

Support

As a resident in Victoria Road, I would very much like to kerp the Low Traffic Neighbourhood in place.
The reduction of traffic has improved safety in an area with a number of junior schools and nurseries.
Cars can no longer use Victoria Road as a shortcut through Hawkes Road to London Road. Before this scheme - even with the speed bumps, cars and vans would race down this road,
posing a huge threat to children living in this area and attending the local schools and nurseries.
I highly urge you to keep the Low Traffic Neighbourhood in place.

Support

Registering support for the continuation of the low traffic neighbourhood scheme in Albert, Victoria and Church roads.

Support

I confim my support to keep our Low Traffic Neighbourhood covering Albert Road; Victoria Road and Church Road
It has given us a much cleaner (no exhaust fumes coming in our windows) and safer enviourment for both the young
(two schools in our triangle) and the old. It is now so much quieter
The new one way systems works well, especially for the cyclists but surely it would be a lot safer if they also observed
the one way system

Support

I am writing to give my support to maintaining the Low Traffic scheme.
Since the change Victoria Road has been wonderfully calm.
My sleep has been much improved because without loud cars speeding down the road at night I can keep my window open
and because there are no longer any fumes from rush hour standing traffic waiting to turn into Cambridge Road.
This contributes to better general and mental health.
The garden is quieter too and there are also more birds of a greater variety.
Please continue the scheme.

Support

Just emailing to say that I support the campaign to maintain the low traffic area.

A53

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
Thank you very much for your leaflet.
We live on Victoria Road and would like to express our keen support for making the Low Traffic Neighbourhood scheme permanent. The scheme has made the roads significantly safer,
especially for the school and nursery in the area. It’s made life for residents much easier and quieter. As a driver, it has not made the other larger roads busier - it has simply stopped the
unnecessary use of small residential roads as a cut through, which results in more stationary traffic and dangerous driving.
We would be very disappointed if this scheme were not continued and feel it would be an extremely detrimental decision for the area.

Support

As the LTN trial period for this area nears it end. I must send my support for keeping it in place. Speaking with many people around the area there is great support. Traffic is flowing freely
along the main roads where it should be. Obviously the the scheme has made a great difference for the residents of the above roads not having the ‘rat runners speeding through. Church
Road having this in both directions! The quality of the air & noise pollution is very notable and it is so to see the cyclists being able to ride safely without any danger from passing cars..
It would be a great pity for not only this area but for the borough of Kingston upon Thames should this scheme fail.

Support

Having been a resident of Albert road for over 30 years it has been a joy and pleasure to experience your low traffic scheme and reversal of the one way street.
Even with lockdown I know this last Christmas, and indeed every Saturday, would have seen the solid stream of stationary traffic build up on our road filling the air with fumes.
The heavy lorries, mostly from the recycling centre, have not been hammering down the road at 6:30 every morning, hitting the traffic calming humps at high speed and shaking the house
and almost always waking me.
It’s also been safer for cyclists in both directions so they haven’t needed to ride on the pavement risking collisions with pedestrians, which happened to my wife only a number of years back
and resulted in concussion and a trip to casualty.
Our grand children and dog have been much safer on the pavements and finding a parking space has not been a problem.
Please make this excellent and sensible 21st century move to favour pedestrians, cyclists and residents a permanent feature of this little neighbourhood.

Support

I am requesting that Ltn be made permanent as the past few months the traffic on Albert road where I have resided for the past 32 years has been low and the road joyfully peaceful. The
large heavy lorries speeding over the speed bumps on the road, shaking the foundation of our houses have been gratefully not missed. The stationary traffic that we experienced in normal
times (before lockdown) building up fumes from the vehicle exhausts have not been missed.
The speeding rat runs that were Albert road and Victoria road-have now been re imagined as quiet residential streets as they should have been all along. A few years ago I ended up in
Kingston hospital after being knocked down by a cyclist using the pavement to avoid the traffic on the road. Thank you for this wise experiment which should be made permanent.

Support

I would like to confirm my support for making the LTN on Albert Rd permanent. Since it’s introduction we’ve seen:
- more people walking/cycling
- improved air quality/ much lower pollution. Prior to its introduction, my windows and windows sills would be black with soot from all the cars that would pass through on a daily basis. Since
this has been introduced the air is far cleaner and I can enjoy having my windows open
- lower noise pollution
In terms of health outcomes, the trial has been an absolute success.
The roads are far safer as there are no cars speeding as they pass through to London Rd, considering we have a nursery/primary school on Albert Rd and several families with children in
this area, the LTN provides a far safer environment for them.
I understand that there has not been many issues with traffic being diverted elsewhere and I firmly believe the three roads ( Albert, Church and Victoria) are not suitable for the levels of
traffic that they were exposed to prior to the LTN being introduced.
For the health benefits to local residents, I think this trial should be made permanent.

Support

I am writing to offer my support to the continuation of the Low Traffic Neighbourhood Scheme currently being trialled in Albert Road and the surrounding roads.
As a regular visitor to the area with two young children (our support bubble reside on Albert Road) it has been a genuine joy to know that my children are safe to get in and out of the car
without the traffic, horns and often abuse that one would receive merely for getting the children safely to the front door. The scope to make use of the road for street parties in the future is a
beacon of hope to many in these uncertain times.
Having worked on projects such as this in my capacity as a Police Sergeant, I have witnessed first-hand the positive effects of retaining these quiet, safe streets over gridlocked queues. I
have attended numerous outdoor events that have knitted communities together, in an age where we are continually pushed further apart. I believe that Kingston is the sort of area that can
follow this example and should do so.
Whilst I appreciate that (rightly) the traffic data accrued will be a primary influence on decision making, I have to drive further than before to get to my destination and have genuinely not
noticed any road rage, adverse queuing or RTC’s. Whilst it has made a tremendous difference to the local community, it doesn’t appear to have had much influence on traffic flow.
I expect that Kingston being considered a safe, enjoyable and forward-thinking place to live and work will greatly outweigh the need to funnel traffic down single-track residential roads with
narrow footpaths and a primary school.

A54

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
Please include the following in our submission to the council.
I would like to urge the council to keep the low traffic arrangements that are in place for Albert Rd., Church Rd., and Victoria Rd. I would I urge them to consider the following reasons:
1. The increased use by cyclists and pedestrians must indicate a step in the right direction in terms of transport and exercise for the local population;
2. The improved quality of air and carless environment must enhance the quality of life for St. Joseph’s pupils, staff and parents;
3. The arguments suggesting that the build up of cars in Hawk’s Rd adversely effects the air quality in the playground of St Joseph’s does not stand up to scrutiny in that break times and
lunchtimes do not coincide with peak traffic times and most cars are now fitted with cut out devices when in traffic;
4. While it is true that some motorists have been inconvenienced and the build up of traffic along Hawk’s Rd has at times been increased, surely the whole point of attempting to alter an
unsustainable environment is to persuade people away from car use. The elephant in the room is that we need to make it unattractive to opt for car use when and if alternatives are
available. As a car owner who lives in Albert Rd. I now walk and cycle or get the train if necessary whenever possible rather than contribute to any traffic in the surrounding area. It would be
much easier to drive if going in the direction of Surbiton, Tolworth etc. however the traffic calming measures have encouraged me to seek alternatives. The greater good has also
inconvenienced some Albert Rd residents, which is a price well worth paying.
5. As a parent of a teenager I am aware of a degree of responsibility that our generation have to manage our environment for future generations, which will inevitable require changes to our
current practice. I would be desperately ashamed if short term selfishness directed us to capitulate to those who shout loudest.

Support

We fully support the Low Traffic Neighbourhood and want it to stay on a permanent basis. The traffic noise has been much reduced since the start of it and it is safer now : a fact that
needs to be said.
Long many it continue!!

Support

I would like to support the LTN that was introduced on Albert, Church and Victoria Road.
SInce it has been introduced the roads are quieter, safer and there is much less air pollution.
It is a welcome addition to the area and it helps the local residents get healthy and stay safe. I would like to see it made permanent.

Support

We would strongly urge Kingston Council to continue with the Low Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) on Albert Road, Victoria Road, and Church Road.
These three roads are all one-way, single-lane, residential streets, which were not built to cope with the volume of traffic that was passing through them prior to the LTN. There is a primary
school on Albert Road, and a nursery and preschool on Victoria Road, which makes high levels of traffic dangerous and inconvenient for parents dropping their children at school. There are
also no traffic lights on these roads, which would help to control the flow of heavy traffic. As a result, prior to the LTN, these roads were often so congested with stationary traffic, that it
could take up to 15 minutes to drive the length of Victoria Road and exit onto Cambridge Road.
While the LTN may in the short-term result in more vehicular traffic on the surrounding roads (London Road, Cambridge Road and Hawks Road), these are all major two-way, mixed
residential and commercial use roads, with multiple lanes at key junctions, and traffic lights that can be used to control the flow of traffic and safe crossing for pedestrians. These roads are
far better equipped to cope with increased volumes of traffic than the narrow one-way streets in the LTN.

Support

I would just like to say how much of a great success the scheme has been. The traffic noise and pollution has been greatly decreased. You can almost taste the difference in the air.
Walking my son to school with no traffic has been a real pleasure and so much healthier for us both.
Surely these types of schemes should be made permanent in more parts of Kingston which will greatly improve health and the environment.

Support

I would like to support the LTN that was introduced our road.
SInce it has been introduced the roads are quieter, safer and there is much less air pollution - people are using their cars less and walking more.
It is a welcome addition to the area and it helps the local residents get healthy and stay safe. I would like to see it made permanent.

Support

As an asthma sufferer, I can honestly say that my condition has stabilised and improved since the trial began. It is so wonderful to be able to open my front windows for the first time in 30
years and not be worried about the effect on my lungs. I am so grateful for the difference the LTN has already made to my health and I sincerely hope that the LTN it will remain in place.

Support

I want the road to stay closed because it is quieter on the road with it closed and there is less pollution. It makes cycling better because of the low number of cars.

Support

I am one of the oldest and one of the longest person to live in Albert rd 56 years .When first moved here it was a alley way at London road end so road was like it was at this moment nice
quiet no heavy traffic ,once road was opened which we did campaign because Kingston council wanted two way which we won to stop .But once road was opened all hell let lose we had
buses heavy lorries cracks coming in walls pictures falling off wall through vibration So now at this moment the last 6 months been heaven the road was back to how it was and should be
please keep it that way

Support

We live in Church Road & the reduction in traffic is a blessing & I am speaking as a driver as well. The reduction in traffic noise is a game changer particularly with a window open or when
spending time in the garden, we childmind our 3 year old granddaughter & walking along Church Road with her is less stressful. If this scheme was closed down it would be a huge step
back for myself and my neighbours in Camm Gardens, we are all over 60, some are a lot older & this scheme has improved our lives, let’s make the change permanent so we can carry on
with a peaceful summer in the garden.

A55

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I think that the implementation of the barriers to Albert Road has had a very positive effect on the neighbourhood. It has turned a dangerous rat run into a friendly open area frequented by
families and cyclists. The safer vicinities created outside the nursery waiting areas cannot be allowed to return to the hazardous conditions we had before. Furthermore, the closure and
additional alteration to traffic direction appears to have dissuaded the drug dealers who frequently parked outside our property before the scheme. I wholeheartedly support the permanent
fixture of the Low Traffic Neighbourhood in this area.

Support

We live on Albert Road and strongly support the continuance of the LTN scheme, a resounding success for us as a retired couple in for much of the day. The reduction in noise and
pollution is tangible on a daily basis and our walk in the local area considerably more pleasant

Support

I would like to express my fullest support for, and satisfaction with, the current Low Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) scheme in place in Albert Road, Kingston upon Thames.
The quality of living in Albert Road is significantly improved by the reduction in through traffic since the LTN scheme was installed. Noise reduction, air quality, and safety for pedestrians are
all noticably better. As a keen cyclist, the sense of safer cycling in and around Albert Road is also palpable.
For all of the reasons stated above, I would like to express my thanks to the foresight of the local authority for introducing the LTN, and I am therefore very keen to see the scheme become
a permanent one.

Support

Just a few lines to say how much my wife and I appreciate how the Albert Road LTN has improved our lives. The rat running traffic has stopped and the cycling use of the road has
increased. It has become a safer environment for pedestrians and is a winner. We both trust that following this success the LTN will now be made permanent.

Support

I've recently moved onto Victoria Road and have seen the difference the LTN has made compared to when I was viewing the property. I'd like to submit my support for keeping the LTN,
what is the best way to do that?
I have already submitted my support via the Kingston Let's Talk site and happy to provide some text for you to put into the package for the councillors.

Support

Please add my voice to the call to the council to make Albert road's low traffic neighbourhood a permanent change.
I can't think of any downsides to it.
The road is much quieter. It feels safer. There must be less pollution and there is definitely less noise.
Traffic congestion in the surrounding roads does not seem dreadful although this is difficult to assess due to the Covid shutdowns.
Please don't allow our neighbourhood to go back to being a traffic rat run or rat jam.
Ps. If there's anything I can do to help this campaign please let me know

Support

I would like to bring to your attention my support in keeping the LTN at Albert Road as the environment improved immensely with less traffic and noise. The road it's a safer and much better
place.

Support

Please include our response. We fully support keeping the low traffic neighbourhood after 07 March and I do hope they do as it has definitely improved our living conditions.
It is much safer and a cleaner place to live, less impact on our environmental air and much healthier for the neighbourhood for all of our residents. It is much improved without having all the
traffic constantly piled up outside of our homes with fumes being pumped out. It also feels a calmer area to live which is another positive on our local area. Nicer for elder residents
especially. People can also park slightly easier which another important point for people who do not have a parking bay or space and must use the road to park.

Support

We would like to state our full support for the low traffic neighbourhood in Albert, Victoria and Church Road.
Since it began last year it has made a huge difference to the quality of the street with large reduction in vehicle traffic. Air quality has improved substantially and the reduction in noise
pollution has made the neighbourhood a much more pleasant place to walk and socialise.
We strongly support keeping the traffic measures in place permanently.

Support

I live near the junction of Victoria Rd and the Cambridge Road. Before the scheme, I would regularly have queues of traffic outside my house trying to get onto the main road, fumes, engine
noise, horns beeping, people swearing and shouting, 3 cars side by side, all trying to turn left, lots of near misses and on occasion actual bumps.
I would very much vote in favour of keeping the Low Traffic Neighbourhood scheme, the last few months have been wonderful, it's been lovely and peaceful, stress and fume free and I
have had so many more birds and foxes visiting my garden. Bliss.

Support

I often walk down Albert Road and since the traffic diversion it is a delight. Before the diversion it was unpleasant, given the narrow pavements, and the heavy traffic using the road as a
major rat run from Hawks Road. The air and noise pollution is unacceptable for the children attending the primary school located opposite Victoria Road in Albert Road. Key workers
queue in Albert Road in order to collect their children from school and it must be a relief for them not to be subject to the incessant volume of traffic inches away from them.
I sincerely hope the diversion will be maintained permanently.

A56

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
We are a family of 2 adults and 3 children.
The last 6 months has been an overwhelmingly positive experience for all of us.
We have observed the following very positive impacts of the low traffic neighbourhood.
* A much more peaceful and calm environment inside our house. Even from inside our house there were times at rush hour and the weekends prior to the LTN when there would be a
constant queue of traffic outside, and the constant idling and revving of engines could be heard. The contrast now is incredible, we can sit in our living rooms or bedrooms and hear the
peace and quiet, the wind blowing through the trees, the birds singing, families chatting and laughing as they walk past. Similarly it’s nice not to see queues of cars from inside the house. I
don’t underestimate the benefits this has on mental health and wellbeing.
* A much more pleasant environment outside. It’s lovely to see not only the streets with far fewer cars, but this has been replaced by people walking along the roads, kids scooting/cycling
up and down the street which makes for a much healthier and positive environment.
* The roads are now safer. Fewer cars/bikes on the street is safer, especially for younger children. The cars that do use the road seem to be driving more slowly and safely. When the
street was used as a rat run cars would sometimes drive too fast, and for some reason I would observe drivers looking at/using their mobile phones literally on a daily basis. I would often
worry about the safety of my children.
* I assume there is a huge reduction in harmful pollutants with the reduction of traffic and the reduction of idling/queueing cars. Anything we can do in this respect for out health and in
particular the health of our kids is very important.
* Whilst there was an initial impact on surrounding roads (especially Villiers), this seems to have settled down back to normal levels.
* Exiting Victoria Road is now easier without the queues of traffic and with the introduction of the Keep Clear road marking on Cambridge Road. This means when we do occasionally use
the car the journey is quicker and less stressful with less idling.
I have observed motorbikes (in particular delivery services) bypassing the planters and still using the road as a rat run. However, this traffic is not as significant. I imagine the motorcyclists
are well within their rights to at least briefly dismount and push their bikes past the planters, so I don’t think there is really much we can do about this.
As mentioned initially, we feel the benefits of the scheme have been huge, and we would be very disappointed with a step back to the pre LTN days. As such we fully support the
promotion of the LTN to a permanent scheme.

Support

Thank you for the notice through the door and gathering statements - I hope they make a difference!
Here’s ours:
The Low Traffic Neighbourhood scheme has been transformative to Victoria Road. It has changed the quality of our daily lives. Previously for most of the day traffic would queue the length
of the road - polluting the air we breath, reducing privacy (from the road you can see directly into living rooms), and increasing the length of vehicle journeys considerably. Generally the
previous traffic congestion had a detrimental impact on our immediate home environment. We live directly opposite a nursery, and therefore the air pollution was also affecting the small
lungs of those under 4 years old daily too. In addition the constant queue of car would regularly add 20 plus minutes to journey times if travelling by car or taxi. On one particularly bad
occasion a visiting relative missed their train from Euston as the taxi had a 45 minute wait to get out of the road. Since the changes our road has been clear with no queuing cars running
engines - the result is cleaner and quieter living for us. Thank you for making the changes initially and we hope they continue.

Support

I live in Victoria Road. We have a road hump near our house and
one of the main advantages of LTN is our house doesn’t shake as a skip or large
vehicle passes. We also do not have to worry opening our gate in case a vehicle,
motor bike or cycle comes up onto the pavement. Lastly we do not have to listen
to music blaring and exhaust fumes coming out from stationary cars in queue
waiting to get out onto Cambridge Road.

Support

Pre LTN traffic of over 4,000 vehicles per day should never return to V&A roads.

Support

I would like to add my support to make the low traffic neighbourhood permanent or at least extended as long as possible.
In the beginning I was disappointed and a bit unhappy that it was introduced so quickly and without notice but now I love it.
I do drive and have to follow the loop which is not always the most convenient and adds extra minutes.
I quickly realised that I am more than happy to trade the extra minutes for quiet and safer road.
Please let me what else can be done.

A57

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
The LTN has been a really positive change within our neighbourhood. It has allowed my son (and many other children) a safe and pleasant walk to school, prevented the bumper to bumper
traffic that snarled up the streets by rat runners during commuting hours, improved the access for cyclists (many more of which have been using the streets), and encourage greater
community spirit and engagement within the area.
Making the LTN permanent demonstrates that Kingston is serious about changing the way we live and travel in the borough: encouraging everyone to replace short journeys by car with
cycling or walking, allowing those who really need to use their cars greater accessibility to the roads.
Looking to the future, changes such as the LTN are needed all across the borough to meet net zero, wellbeing and community creation targets. Do not make this a backward step, Kingston
needs to look forward and can set the standards as to what a modern, safe and environmentally friendly town can look like.

Support

We, undersigned, wish to express our support of Low Traffic Neighbourhood in Albert Road, tackling congestion, pollution and noise on our residential road.
We give our thanks to Kingston Council for working to ensure our streets are safe for everyone.
Lockdown opened everyone’s eyes to a different way that our road could be a place that welcomed walking, cycling and social distanced cups of tea with neighbours.
Our road was transformed from a busy, noisy and polluted thoroughfares to a peaceful residential road.
As lockdown eases, we will need, more than ever, safe and spacious routes for walking and cycling to stop the air and noise pollution, and danger that traffic inflicts on our neighbourhood.
That’s why we welcome the leadership of Kingston Council to make sure change to our road is not lost as life returns to normal.
We support Low Traffic Neighbourhood that reduces congestion and air pollution on our residential Albert Road.

Support

We, undersigned, wish to express our support of Low Traffic Neighbourhood in Albert Road, tackling congestion, pollution and noise on our residential road.
We give our thanks to Kingston Council for working to ensure our streets are safe for everyone.
Lockdown opened everyone’s eyes to a different way that our road could be a place that welcomed walking, cycling and social distanced cups of tea with neighbours.
Our road was transformed from a busy, noisy and polluted thoroughfares to a peaceful residential road.
As lockdown eases, we will need, more than ever, safe and spacious routes for walking and cycling to stop the air and noise pollution, and danger that traffic inflicts on our neighbourhood.
That’s why we welcome the leadership of Kingston Council to make sure change to our road is not lost as life returns to normal.
We support Low Traffic Neighbourhood that reduces congestion and air pollution on our residential Albert Road.

Support

I would like to confirm my support for making the LTN on Albert Rd permanent. Since it’s introduction we’ve seen:
- more people walking/cycling
- improved air quality/ much lower pollution. Prior to its introduction, my windows and windows sills would be black with soot from all the cars that would pass through on a daily basis. Since
this has been introduced the air is far cleaner and I can enjoy having my windows open
- lower noise pollution
In terms of health outcomes, the trial has been an absolute success.
The roads are far safer as there are no cars speeding as they pass through to London Rd, considering we have a nursery/primary school on Albert Rd and several families with children in
this area, the LTN provides a far safer environment for them.
I understand that there has not been many issues with traffic being diverted elsewhere and I firmly believe the three roads ( Albert, Church and Victoria) are not suitable for the levels of
traffic that they were exposed to prior to the LTN being introduced.
For the health benefits to local residents, I think this trial should be made permanent.

Support

I just wanted to drop a note to say that I'm very pleased with how things are now. Traffic reduced significantly in this area where lots of kids go to school/nursery. For residents like us, it's
been a blessing. It is safer and cleaner for our kids and quieter as we don't have cars, motorbikes and lorries racing down a residential road. Bicycles can also circulate more safely and
confidently without all the extra traffic. I can also hear more birds now !!
This is definitely a move in the right direction and I really hope it is made permanent and that more of these actions are taken to make our air cleaner, our habitat more pleasant and our
roads safer.

A58

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
I am writing on behalf of the Albert Road LTN residents group, which has worked in association with the Tricorn Residents Association, covering Albert Road, Victoria and Church Roads.
Please find attached dozens of emails that we have received from residents in support of the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood. Reading these, it is hard to not be moved by the
stories of the vast improvement in quality of life and health that the LTN has delivered to hundreds of residents. Many have lived with dangerous speeding, houses shaking and pollution for
many years and are relieved by the change.
In particular,
- Many residents have spoken about how the LTN has improved the environment in Kingston, with rows of cars no longer backed up the streets belching out fumes into the area,
aggravating health conditions. People now feel able to open their windows;
- The Nursery on Victoria Road has responded noting how the pollution levels have lowered for the 98 children there, this must be right for our kids;
- People feel far safer walking and cycling in the area and are far more confident about walking with their children to the local schools and nurseries. This is backed up with an obvious
increase in the number of cyclists and pedestrians using the LTN;
- Several have noted that there are now far fewer HGVs careering down Albert Road in excess of 20mph, literally shaking houses. It is a narrow residential street, not an 'A' road; and
- There are replies from those who commute from Surbiton who note that this is the right thing to do as well as those who were initially opposed to the LTN and who are now of the view that
the change has been beneficial. Indeed, there is some evidence in the replies that people are changing their behaviour and now opting for self-propelled or public transport, rather than
using the car.
I am certainly one of these - the LTN has encouraged me to now barely use my car (I bought a bike as the road is so safe!).
Respondees seem to overwhelmingly support making this LTN permanent. I genuinely hope you do - to return to the bad old days of traffic backing up Albert Road or it taking 20 mins to
drive along Victoria Road, with all the pollution and anti-social impacts of that, cannot be a positive step.
Kingston Council did the right thing to encourage sustainable transport in this area and over time, I'm sure it will. We are already beginning to see the green shoots of behaviour change.
Please make this LTN permanent.

Support

I live in Church Road since 1994.
I am wholly in support of the existing LTN. I am sure fellow residents will agree with me. I have a chronic lung condition and no cars thundering past means clearer air quality. This short
street is often used as a rat run and can become very congested.

Support

The LTN at Albert Road has made a huge impact on reducing traffic significantly in the area. It has meant safer walking to the school for children. It is also safer for borough residents to
get around these residential streets in general. Cycling routes in the borough are now more connected by using these roads and conditions are safer and better for all. Please keep the
scheme in place and continue to reduce pollution in the borough. More trees could be planted in the area if it is kept low traffic helping to clean and filter the air for Kingston residents and
make a more pleasant environment for all.

A59

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support

Comments
Dear Councillors and all concerned with decisions on the future of Kingston’s Low Traffic Neighbourhoods,
Tricorn is the residents association representing Victoria, Albert, Church Roads and Camm Gardens, the roads making up the Albert Road LTN. We submitted our ‘Case for retaining the
LTNs’ at the half way point of the consultation period and I do not propose to repeat that now but I will take the opportunity to restate that the ARLTN has succeeded in all respects in
achieving the council’s published aims for LTNs. As the period for public consultation nears its end we have some further points to present.
We note that a point made by some opposed to the scheme is that we represent an aspirational middle class neighbourhood seeking to gentrify our area. We must make the point firmly
that we have a significant volume of social and housing association properties in our neighbourhood, not only the concentration on Church Road (Hawker Court and Camm gardens in
particular). In addition many of our fine looking Victorian villas have been divided into open market bed-sits and flats. We are a diversified, mixed and open community and wish to keep it
that way.
Our neighbourhood has three schools on or immediately adjacent to our roads (Victoria Road Nursery, St. Joseph's and the Grammar) with King Athelstan and Tiffin also on walking routes
through the LTN roads. All these schools have catchments beyond the immediate LTN area and all school pupils will benefit if the LTN is retained. We too have households with young
children and residents with respiratory complaints who suffer from the effects of traffic pollution and are put at risk by fast moving traffic.
Residents of Hawks Road suffer from high traffic volumes. We feel that the LTN cannot be allowed to be held responsible for this long standing problem. Whilst the solution is an absolute
reduction in the number of vehicles on the area’s streets, the problem is exacerbated by the timing of the traffic signals at the junctions at Villiers Road and Hawks Road, Hawks Road and
Cambridge Road and Cambridge Road and London Road. It would appear that the phasing of the signals allow more time for traffic to join Hawks Road from Villiers Road than to leave it.
We understand that the management of these traffic signals is the responsibility of Transport for London’s Network Performance department. We hear there is resistance at TfL to make any
adjustment to the timings until the Cambridge Road to New Malden Go-Cycle scheme is fully implemented. This is completely unacceptable. This problem has existed for years and the
council must put even heavier pressure on TfL to address it. This problem will only get worse as the Cambridge Estate Regeneration Project begins in earnest - and we are concerned to
note the proposal not only to put the regeneration scheme’s HGV traffic onto Hawks Road immediately at the junction with Cambridge Road, but that is seriously suggested that the cycle
lanes and footways in the area be closed for the duration of the work - years! Another factor increasing the load on Hawks Road is poor signposting. Traffic from Surbiton needs to be
encouraged to consider routes to the town centre shops and car parking not via Hawks Road (plus Albert and Victoria Roads in the past) but in particular via Surbiton Hill Road and the
A240 for the Bittoms and Rose car parks, rather than to be actively signposted down unsuitable residential roads as previously into Albert Road.
In conclusion we are pleased to learn the 'London Plan 2021' has been recently released and specifically outlines the need for 'a greener and healthier city', with the creation of 'healthy
streets’.This is what Kingston’s LTNs go some way to achieving.
Best Regards,

Objection

I am formally objecting to the Albert Road closure.
I work on Albert Road. I can see Albert Road from my window. I work Monday to Friday. In all this time, since the road was closed I've seen about 5 cyclists using Albert Road, no more
than before it was closed.
Of course there's now less traffic down Albert Road and Church Road. But there is a corresponding increase in traffic on the surrounding roads. And as everyone is being funnelled through
fewer roads there are long traffic queues on other roads. The amount of traffic is the same. Nobody has switched from driving to cycling.
The LTN means my journey to work now takes longer, an extra half a mile per day which adds up to an extra 120 miles per year. Who's going to pay for the extra petrol? It should be the
residents of Albert Road as the extra cost is a direct consequence of them wanting to stop people using a public highway paid for by taxpayers.
If they want to create a private estate then they should take over the cost of maintaining it. Why should my taxes pay for a road I can't use?
When exiting the LTN it is so badly designed, you can't see what's coming down Hawks Road because of numerous street light poles on the corner.
When I turn left out of hawks road i end up in traffic waiting for the lights at the end of the road and have to wait for them to go before I can turn left into Albert road.
The whole scheme is poorly designed and causes more pollution through longer journeys and more traffic jams.
Many other boroughs have scrapped their equally badly designed schemes. When are you going to scrap yours?
The only beneficiaries are a handful of people in the neighborhood whilst 1000s of people others pay the price in time and money.
There is NO overall benefit to the majority of people.
You need to scrap these schemes or pay the price at the next election.

Support

It is vitally important that the very successful Albert Road low traffic initiative is made permanent.

Support

Please accept my support for the continued reduction of traffic in Kingston.
I am a regular visitor to Victoria Road to visit my mother, so appreciate the peace and quiet we can now enjoy.

Support

Please add my comments below to the support for the retention of the LTN in Albert road.
I am a resident of Albert road. The "Low Traffic Neighbourhood" in Albert road has certainly prevented the rat running of traffic (cars, and much larger vehicles) in Albert Road and Victoria
road, and it has been pleasant to be able to open our windows without the smell of traffic fumes. The noise and air pollution have both definitely decreased. We can now breathe much
cleaner air both inside and outside our home. This certainly must also be a benefit to families and children walking to our local schools. I would like the Low Traffic Neighbourhood scheme
retained in Albert road.

A60

Support

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object / Support /
Neither object nor
support
Support

Comments
I am a Victoria Road resident and I would like to inform you of my support for keeping the Albert Road Low Traffic Neighbourhood measures in place.
I recently moved into the property and saw the difference the LTN made during the viewings. The improvement it made to the area was a big factor in my decision. The reduction in cars
speeding down the road has made a huge difference in safety and noise while making cycling around the area a much nicer experience.
It would be great if we could keep non residential traffic to the arterial routes which have been planned for that purpose and have the safety measures in place.

A61

B1
Kingston Town Neighbourhood Committee - 27 July 2021

Appendix B

Lower Ham Road Low Traffic Scheme - Experimental Traffic Management Order
review
Report by Matthew Hill, Assistant Director Highways, Transport and Regulatory Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Stephanie Archer
Purpose of Report
To provide feedback to the Committee on a number of workstreams, which includes
consultation responses (portal/email/ETMO), comment on traffic surveys and air quality
assessments and potential impacts and to seek a way forward with the measures.
Recommendation(s)
The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that:
1. The Lower Ham Road closure to motor vehicles be made permanent and the
necessary statutory process be undertaken to make the order permanent,
2. The objections received as part of the statutory consultation be set aside in line
with the details in paragraph 43 to 45.
3. The physical closure (bollard) be replaced with ANPR cameras, subject to funding
being made available by TfL and in line with paragraph 30.
4. The scheme will be monitored, with additional traffic and air quality data being
collected, and an update report be brought to the committee for information in 12
months time

Benefits to the Community:
It is considered that the proposals will make our roads easier to use and more attractive
for our residents, creating an environment that encourages more walking and cycling.
Key Points
A.

In March 2020 the world was hit by the COVID 19 pandemic, and the changing
travel patterns presented both an opportunity and a threat. The opportunity was
that the council was able to bring forward at a quicker pace than expected a number
of ‘low traffic neighbourhood’ (LTN) projects.

B.

We want to make Kingston a clean, green and safe borough for all residents. It is
therefore important that our analysis looks at other factors such as the impact of the
schemes on air quality, traffic flows and cycling patterns. LTNs are an important
tool to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists, and so to help tackle our
climate crisis, improve air quality and make our neighbourhoods better places to

B2
live.to make local roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists. LTNs encourage active
travel, which in the long term helps to protect the environment and reduce carbon
emissions.

C.

The Council originally identified four scheme locations for LTNs, which were set out
in the report to the Response and Recovery Committee on 30 July 2020. It
included a scheme for the Lower Ham Road area, and the scope of the scheme
area can be seen on the plan at Annex 1.

D.

The process used to implement the LTNs was an ‘Experimental Traffic Management
Order’ (ETMO). Use of this process was strongly encouraged by central
government and TfL. This is a common process which allows the immediate
implementation of measures and a consultation running in parallel with the
implementation of the experiment, although it is not the ‘usual’ way that Kingston
has implemented traffic management and improvement projects.

E.

The ETMO process includes a six month engagement period at the start of the trial.
The experimental scheme itself can remain in place for up to 18 months in total. In
addition to the formal traffic order consultation, residents were able to submit their
views about the LTN schemes online ‘informally’ using the Kingston Let’s Talk
portal. In total, 152 residents submitted their views via Kingston Let’s Talk on the
LTN on Lower Ham Road. The engagement process also included reaching out to
stakeholder groups, setting up the Street Talk publication and feedback through the
Streetspace email inbox and via Members. The engagement feedback is however,
only part of the overall analysis process. This looks at the longer-term policy
ambitions for the Council, as set out in the context below.

F.

We want to make Kingston a clean, green and safe borough for all residents. It is
therefore important that our analysis looks at other factors such as the impact of the
schemes on air quality, traffic flows and cycling patterns. LTNs are an important
tool to help tackle our climate crisis and air quality and to make local roads safer for
pedestrians and cyclists. LTNs encourage active travel, which in the long term helps
to protect the environment and reduce carbon emissions.

G.

Although there was a formal process by which responses to the ETMO could be
made, it was felt the series of questions used for the Let’s Talk survey would
capture more precisely people’s experiences and attitudes to the LTNs (see the six
questions below).

H.

The borough’s key Transport Strategy, the Local Implementation Plan 3 (LIP3), and
the Corporate Plan are aligned in terms of focussing on measures to address traffic
flows in residential areas.

Context
1.

We must change the way we travel around the borough if we are to achieve our
air quality goals and reach net zero carbon emissions. COVID-19 has has had a
significant impact on the way we use our streets in responding to the public
health crisis. This report outlines how the Council can further improve our public

B3
realm and further develop our commitment to environmental sustainability as our
‘Streetspace’ is enhanced following the impact of COVID-19.

2.

Through the development and delivery of the annual programme of Local
Implementation Plan (LIP) schemes officers were aware of locations across the
borough where through traffic issues had been identified as being too high,
including Lower Ham Road. As such these locations were proposed for
installation as part of the Streetspace Programme and funds were made
available from TfL and DfT to enable introduction of this programme, which
replaced much of the usual LIP programme for Kingston in 20/21.

3.

The introduction of Low Traffic schemes also support recommendations from
Kingston’s Citizens’ Assembly on Air Quality, the Air Quality Action Plan and the
council’s emerging Climate Emergency Action Plan and it is noted that this
Committee have recently supported proposal to introduce 20mph speed limit
changes for all the residential roads in the neighbourhood, which when
considered in conjunction with the measures in place in Lower Ham Road and
the Go Cycle measures across the borough, it is anticipated will enhance this
local area further to provide an improve environment for walking and cycling.

4.

The LIP3 was written to reflect the aims and objectives identified in RBK’s key
existing and emerging policy and strategy documents, and also London wide and
national policy guidance. RBK’s key policy documents include the existing and
emerging Corporate and Local Plans. The LIP3 includes nine MTS outcomes
which it will be measured against, and Outcome 1 states that London/Kingston
streets will be healthy and more Londoners will travel actively with borough
objectives to deliver 20mph schemes across the borough on residential roads,
and to create an environment that encourages a higher level of walking and
cycling trips.

Proposal and Options
5.

The scheme itself involves the introduction of a road closure, which prevents
motor traffic from heading along Lower Ham Road, and it was placed between
the junctions of Bank Lane and Woodside Road. The scheme involved putting in
place three planters so that standard motor vehicles could not enter yet would
allow cyclists.

6.

As highlighted above, because of the urgency with which the Low Traffic
schemes needed to be introduced the identification of the location and the
consideration of any options was undertaken by officers at the time of the bid
submission.

7.

During the experimental TMO process officers used a number of methods of
engagement to ensure we were collecting information and data from a wide base
of interested parties, and Annexes 2 provides an assessment of the responses.

8.

These included setting up surveys for each LTN scheme of our Kingston Let’s
Talk engagement portal; enhanced messaging using social media channels and
resident publications through our communications team; set up the Street Talk
publication, which was distributed as a newsletter through the engagement
portal; engaged with residents through the streetspace email; taken into account

B4
formal objections raised through the TMO Process; and we undertook a
stakeholder feedback review to make it easier for stakeholder groups to give their
comment, which included specific sessions with colleagues from the Emergency
services.

9.

In support of the engagement process officers also undertook data collection to
help assess the impacts of the scheme, and it is important to stress and
acknowledge that during the pandemic traffic flows were not at the same levels
as they were before the pandemic struck. Annex 3 provides the details of the
traffic and air quality information that was gathered during the experimental
period.

10.

It is also highlighted that there were variations to traffic patterns as these
schemes settled down. This monitoring of the changes to traffic patterns before/
after, was gathered to support the process before any decision is taken to extend
the trial, make it permanent or remove it.
Officer commentary and Recommendations

11.

This section of the report will expand on the feedback received to the various
elements of engagement referred to above in Paragraph 8.
Let’s Talk Portal

12.

In terms of the Let’s Talk portal the analysis covers the two key questions asked,
and then covers the themes of comments made by the people who responded;
● How do you feel about the changes we have made in Lower Ham Road?
(Respondents were asked to state if they were; Very Happy, Happy, Neutral,
Unhappy or Very Unhappy)
● Would you like to see the changes become permanent? (Respondents were
asked to answer; Yes, No or Don’t Know)

13.

The responses have been analysed at three different levels to identify if there
were any variations in the responses at a Boroughwide, Neighbourhood and
Local level and the headline figures are as follows: overall total received 152,
which includes 12 where the location given was outside the borough. 57% of
respondents indicated they are either happy or very happy with the scheme and
would like the scheme made permanent. 38% of respondents have indicated
they are either unhappy or very unhappy with the changes, with 40% who do not
want the scheme made permanent.

14.

At a neighbourhood level: Total received 116, including the LTN area, which
represents 0.7% of the 17,731 addresses within the neighbourhood. 57% of
respondents indicated they are either happy or very happy with the scheme and
59% have indicated they would like the scheme made permanent. 37% of
respondents have indicated they are either unhappy or very unhappy with the
changes, while 40% do not want the scheme made permanent.

15.

At a local level: Total received 51, which represents 6.3% of the 808 addresses
within the leafleted area as shown on the plan, Annex 1. 49% of respondents
indicate they are either happy or very happy with the LTN and 53% would like the
scheme made permanent. 41% of respondents have indicated they are either
unhappy or very unhappy with the changes and 43% do not want the scheme
made permanent.

Streetspace Email Inbox
16.

B5

In terms of the Streetspace inbox, of the 28 persons who responded through the
streetspace inbox, 3 have also recorded their views on the Let's Talk Portal. 4 of
the persons also recorded their views via the TMO inbox, whilst 1 recorded their
views on all three platforms. Overall the response indicates that 22% of
respondents are happy and 54% of respondents are unhappy with the LTN
scheme. The overriding theme of the comments were about ‘Resources better
spent elsewhere’, which 32% of respondents touched on.
ETMO Responses

17.

In response to the Experimental TMO the number totalled 7. 6 of these have
been determined by the borough’s technical operations team to represent
objections, while 1 was neither objection nor support. Examining the objections
further there is an indication that 6 are local to the Lower Ham Road area, and
the officer recommendations on these objections can be found in paragraphs 43
to 45.
Emergency Services

18.

Representatives of the emergency services covering the borough of Kingston
were invited to comment, along with attending an emergency services
stakeholder working group.

19.

The London Fire Brigade (LFB) - The LFB’s position regarding the use of
physical barriers throughout the Borough to create Lower Traffic Neighbourhoods
is this could cause an increase in traffic levels and access issues, and therefore
increasing response times to incidents. For these reasons the LFB does not
support their use but does accept there is a need for the Council to implement
these measures in response to central government guidelines
The LFB would prefer to see the use of alternate measures such as ANPR to
create and enforce LTN’s. Moreover, the LFB will continue to engage and offer
guidance to Kingston council when supplied with plans on proposed or changes
to existing LTN measures. The LFB agreed with a LAS comment at the
stakeholder meeting, that as the lockdown measures are relaxed and road traffic
levels increase, further analysis of emergency vehicle response and difficulties
encountered will need to be discussed and current LTN’s reviewed.
Where residents complain and claim that emergency vehicles are
delayed/stuck/impinged by LTN measures, data such as times and dates are
useful to gather views and information from crews. To date, we have not received
any information from Crews of any delay in attendance to an incident within the
Borough.
The London Ambulance Service (LAS) - LAS commented as follows; We are
opposed to any physical barriers in place on any LTN schemes but would support
enforcement through ANPR cameras with exemptions for emergency service
vehicles. We have worked with various other boroughs across London who have
listened and changed the method of enforcement to the camera system.
It would not be practical to equip our fleet with these universal keys as it is not
always guaranteed that we would have a local ambulance crew attend if for

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

B6
example call volumes were high and the nearest vehicle was dispatched from
Fulham.
The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) - The MPS traffic officer commented;
My only view is that the Met Police prefer ‘No motor vehicle’ signage with ANPR
camera enforcement, rather than any physical barrier. This allows emergency
vehicle access without the need to remove barriers, whilst preventing any other
access.

Other Stakeholders
25.

Transport for London (TfL) - No major issues identified at the time of the
meeting with TfL advising that the bus operators have not raised any delay
issues with them. Further journey time data has been requested from TfL, and at
this stage it has not been received.

26.

Kingston Centre for Independent Living (KCIL) - Interest in LTNs generally
and not about a specific scheme. This is in relation to the safety of service users
and how accessible the schemes are for people with wheelchairs and those with
ambulatory difficulties.

27.

Noted that KCIL had Blue Badge Holders - they had comments from Blue Badge
Holders who had been asking if they can access LTN areas. It was noted that
the schemes were road closures and as such did not impede on footways but
were designed to improve access for people walking.

28.

Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles - Nothing specific was raised by the group, it
was noted that depending on where passengers were picked up or dropped off in
relation to the LTN, this might increase the fare, and that this could impact those
using taxi cars or wheelchair accessible taxis. While there hadn’t been particular
references, this might change as we continue to emerge from lockdown and
traffic increases.

29.

Kingston Cycling Campaign (KCC) - LTNs seem to be doing their job. Think
generally these schemes are doing great. Impact particularly noticeable on King
Charles Road.

30.

Officers conclusions and recommendations are based on a number of elements,
but the feedback from other stakeholders has been very positive on the whole,
with an overriding theme, led by the emergency services, being requests for the
method of traffic control to be changed from a barrier to a prohibition on access
enforced by an automatic number plate reading camera. A change to this method
of control would remove any potential impact on emergency response times,
which was also a concern expressed by other respondents.

31.

32.

Traffic Data
As part of the data collection all immediately affected roads around the scheme
area were included within a monitoring plan, where traffic flows were recorded at
regular intervals during the project. This allowed officers to compare the flows
before the scheme was introduced, and then at different stages during the
experimental period.
As stated above, it is important to highlight at this stage that the pandemic
resulted in significant changes to the daily travel patterns across the country, and
what were considered ‘normal’ traffic flow conditions changed during this period.

B7
There are permanent counters on Lower Ham Road, which have allowed officers
to assess traffic levels in the area prior to COVID-19, and demonstrate traffic
had been stable (up to and including 2019). This indicates that we can be
reasonably confident that the pre-COVID data is broadly representative of the
situation prior to the impact of COVID-19

33.

The map of traffic flows in Annex 3 shows data collected during four date periods
and is an average over several days. There is a general trend whereby traffic
levels had a dip around January 2021, which can be attributed to lockdown
during the Covid pandemic. However it also shows an increase after this time.
This appears to be the case for all the roads in the Low Traffic Neighbourhood
area around Lower Ham Road, which implies that none of the individual roads
display increases in traffic as a result of displacement from an adjacent road but
that the traffic levels are the result of general conditions across the area.

34.

It is recommended that further traffic monitoring is put in place, so we can create
additional layers of knowledge here which will assist any consideration of
whether further traffic management measures may be needed in these roads.

35.

Air Quality Data
The traffic data that was collected was also used to assess the air quality
impacts, and it is acknowledged that ideally when assessing air quality robust air
quality monitoring requires a minimum of six months of data both before and after
the introduction of a highway intervention, to account for the impact of the
weather and other confounding variables. The requirement for these schemes to
be delivered with a very short turnaround meant that it was not possible to collect
adequate baseline air quality monitoring data.

36.

In order to circumvent this challenge the council carried out air quality modelling
around the low traffic neighbourhoods, to assess the impact of the change in
traffic patterns on air quality at sensitive receptors both within and outside the
neighbourhoods.

37.

The model uses the traffic data collected before and during implementation of the
LTNs. This data is translated into air pollution emissions using The Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Emissions - Factor Toolkit. Emissions
are then used to derive concentrations of key pollutants at user-defined sensitive
receptors. Model outputs are verified and adjusted using data from our existing,
permanent network of air quality monitors.

38.

This is a well-established, industry standard methodology that eliminates the
impact of confounding variables, allowing the impact of the LTNs to be isolated
and quantitatively assessed. This modelling was carried out by independent
consultants, who provided feedback on all of the LTN schemes.

39.

Annex 6 provides the outputs from the modelling exercise, with focus on the key
pollutant of concern to air quality; nitrogen dioxide (NO2). From the table it can
be seen that the variations in the Nitrogen Dioxide concentrations were
considered negligible or slight, even in those roads where we have seen traffic
levels increase.

40.

Based on the data that has been received from the modelling assessment, it
supports the current recommendations for the current measures to be made

B8
permanent. Furthermore, it is recommended that, subject to Committee’s
approval, a further Air Quality assessment is included in the review report in 12
months time.

41.

42.

Objections to ETMO
The scheme was processed as an Experimental TMO, and as such the
Committee need to consider the objections that were raised during the 6 month
trial period, and should members wish to proceed to make the scheme
permanent, either in its current form or with minor amendments, then the
objections received must be considered, dealt with and set aside.
The comments of respondents deemed to have written in support of the ETMO or
to have lodged an objection can be categorised as follows;
TMO Objection or
Support

Number of
people

Ref

Issues Highlighted

S1

Highlighting local benefits including a
better walking and cycling environment

0

Objection

O1

Concerns about displacement of traffic and
increased air pollution on affected roads

2

Objection

O2

Concerns about increased travel times
and/or delays

0

Objecton

O3

Concerns about safety of road users

0

Objection

O4

Combination of O2&O3

Objection

O5

Concerns about impact on emergency
services

1

O6

No traffic issues before introduction of
modal filter

3

Support

Objectrion

43.

Officers have reviewed the objections and consider that the objections received
can be set aside. The traffic data analysis and the air quality report have
indicated that in general, there is less traffic on the local road network around
Lower Ham Road, but this will continue to be monitored and reviewed.

44.

The data provided by the Air Quality modelling demonstrates that the proposals
have had only negligible or slight impact on the area, but as recommended
above the exercise will be repeated as part of the 12 month review. Any
objections that relate to air quality issues can therefore be set aside.

45.

Whilst the emergency services did not raise specific objections to the current
measures, with the removable bollard in place, it was clear they would prefer a
scheme that replaces the closure with ANPR to address their concerns. This is
part of the recommendations, and as such any objections that reference this as
an issue has been dealt with.

Legislation

B9

46.

The works to be undertaken to highways in due course as set out in the report
are within the Council’s powers in the Local Government Act 1972, the Highways
Act 1980 and the Localism Act 2011.

47.

The Committee will need to consider the objections raised during the ETMO
process and if they wish to proceed with the scheme a decision is required to
assess those recommendations and set them aside prior to making a permanent
TMO.

Timescale
48.

Subject to Committee approval, officers will progress the permanent TMO, and
this will be timed to coincide with the introduction of the ANPR cameras. It is
likely that this will take 12-16 weeks.

Financial Context
49.

The council is operating in an increasingly challenging financial environment.
Kingston faced a number of financial challenges in the medium to longer term even before the COVID-19 outbreak, which has further added to these
challenges. The economic and financial consequences of the pandemic, growing
demand for services, and limited government grant funding make it difficult to find
adequate funds to meet the borough's needs.

50.

The future of local government finance faces a significant level of uncertainty.
The impact of the Fair Funding Review and a future review of business rates is
currently unknown, and the lasting effects of COVID-19 on our residents, local
businesses and the Council itself remain uncertain.

51.

Despite these challenges the council has a drive and commitment to ensure it is
doing the best for residents and communities

Financial and Resource Implications
52.

The position around TfL funding is currently uncertain, but officers can advise
that should the Committee wish to proceed and make the scheme permanent
there is a current bid lodged with TfL to secure the funding to do so. It is
anticipated that the outcome of the bid will be known prior to the Committee, and
an update on the funding position will be provided on the night. It is however
considered that this scheme is a borough priority and will be promoted as such in
any discussion with TfL

Legal Implications
53.

Under section 159 of the GLA Act 1999, financial assistance provided by TfL
must be for a purpose which, in TfL’s opinion, is conducive to the provision of
safe, integrated, efficient and economic transport facilities or services to, from or
within Greater London.

54.

Where schemes are approved and receive funding, all procedures, including
consultation, will be undertaken in accordance with the relevant statutory
provisions and best practice.

55.

B10
Any legal implications associated with the Statutory TMO process will be
considered as part of any committee report that covers objections received to
that process.

Risk Assessment
56.

A detailed risk assessment of the scheme will be carried out should members
resolve to make the scheme permanent. During the experimental trial period the
scheme was monitored regularly to allow any day to day risks to be assessed. It
is noted that at the start of the scheme additional advanced signage was needed
to ensure that drivers were given sufficient warning so that they could make
decisions at an early stage about how they might continue their journeys.

Equalities Analysis
57.

Whilst there is an overarching EqIA in place for the LIP and neighbourhood
projects, a supporting EqIA has been undertaken for this project has been
completed and is attached at Annex 7. It is noted that this document was not
prepared in advance of the scheme but at that stage, officers, having reviewed
the existing LIP EqIA, considered that it was unlikely that the measures would
disproportionately impact anyone with protected characteristics.

58.

As a part of the 6 month trial period officers approached Stakeholder Groups to
understand any issues that they had and welcomed input from them. A
workshop was held, and stakeholders invited to attend and share their feedback,
and an interesting point to note was raised, whereby colleagues from KCIL
highlighted that many of their members had actually been shielding for most of
the experimental trial period, and as such would not have experienced its impact.
It was agreed that further sessions with KCIL and other interested stakeholders
would be set up to revisit the scheme, and feedback from those sessions will be
incorporated into the 12 month review.

Health Implications
59.

LTN schemes are embracing a different approach, and by encouraging all
aspects of sustainable travel modes within and through an area, will have
positive health implications for residents, through promoting walking, cycling and
the use of public transport. It is therefore anticipated that the scheme will have a
positive impact on people's health and wellbeing locally.

Road Network Implications
60.

The Council has a statutory responsibility under the Traffic Management Act
2004 to maintain road network operations on its strategic roads. Traffic
movements have been monitored as part of the scheme trial period, and it can be
seen in Annexes 3 and 4 that there has been limited impact on the main road
network.

Sustainability Implications
61.

B11

The overall assessment of the sustainability implications for this LTN is that there
will be a positive impact on the environment resulting from such healthy street
projects, as they aim to encourage mode shift towards less polluting forms of
transport..

Background papers
None other than those referred to in this report.
Author of report - Ian Price - Team Leader, Strategy and Commissioning
ian.price@kingston.gov.uk

B12

Experimental Road
Closure

© Crown copyright [and database rights] 2020 OS 100019285

RIVERSIDE LOW TRAFFIC NEIGHBOURHOOD
Title

Study Area Map

Scale:

1:5,000

Date Printed:

12/11/2020© Crown Copyright

±

ANNEX 2
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT TABLES, CHARTS AND GRAPHS
Prefix LT = Let’s Talk Portal
Prefix SS = Street Space Inbox
Prefix TM = traffic Management Order

B13

B14

B15

B16

B17

(All responses - Total: 152)

B18

B19

B20

(Neighbourhood responses - Total: 65)

B21

B22

B23

(LTN Area responses - Total: 51)

B24

B25

B26

B27

Sutton

B28

DATA SOURCE: DD-1403-02E (JULY 2021)
April 2021
northbound

April 2021
southbound

Jan 2021
northbound

Jan 2021
southbound

Oct 2020
northbound

Oct 2020
southbound

Aug 2020
northbound

Aug 2020
southbound

Richmond Rd (north)

7647

7642

5426

4984

7383

7242

5423

6447

Richmond Rd (south)

9097

8315

6006

5421

8265

7657

7386

7132

936

895

369

344

624

691

716

721

Lower Ham Rd
Albany Pk Rd

243
eastbound

234
westbound

119
eastbound

106
westbound

194
eastbound

225
westbound

172
eastbound

135
westbound

Bank Lane

574

660

295

337

409

510

344

402

Woodside Rd

227

215

106

97

139

120

169

206

April 2021

Jan 2021

Oct 2020

Aug 2020

1831

713

1315

1437

477

225

419

307

1234

632

919

746

442

203

259

375

Richmond Rd (north)

15289

10410

14625

11870

Richmond Rd (south)

17412

11427

15922

14518

Lower Ham Rd
Albany Pk Rd
Bank Lane
Woodside Rd

B29

B30

ANNEX5 

B31




B32





TABLECD1:APRILTOMAY2021 

WEEKDAYTOWARDSRICHMONDRD 

1Apr 6Apr 7Apr 8Apr 9Apr 12Apr13Apr14Apr15Apr16Apr19Apr20Apr21Apr22Apr23Apr26Apr27Apr28Apr29Apr30Apr
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
594


414


388


453


582


541

414



469


497


422


479


671


697


661


657


745


579


645


437


487


606


10
11
12
13
14
17
18
19
20
21
24
25
26
27
28
May May May May May May May May May May May May May May May
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 

4May 5May 6May 7May
2021 2021 2021 2021
373

303

670

545

655

654

307

428

411

507

457

417

274

343

464

560

635

561 

1Apr 6Apr 7Apr 8Apr 9Apr 12Apr13Apr14Apr15Apr16Apr19Apr20Apr21Apr22Apr23Apr26Apr27Apr28Apr29Apr30Apr
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
611


371


392


481




4May 5May 6May 7May
2021 2021 2021 2021
335

443

399




574

632

296


417


500


428


487


599


653


606


628


682


545


614


429


461


547


10
11
12
13
14
17
18
19
20
21
24
25
26
27
28
May May May May May May May May May May May May May May May
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 
540

599

656

281

445

379

469

415

419

232

302

448

510

647

577 

B33


WEEKDAYTOWARDSLOWERKINGSRD 


TABLECD2:APRILTOMAY2021 

WEEKEND/BANKHOLTOWARDSRICHMONDRD 

10Apr
2021 11Apr2021

2Apr2021 3Apr2021 4Apr2021 5Apr2021
808


655


562


446


507


797


684

517

215

18Apr
2021

24Apr
2021

25Apr
2021 



829

843

819

796 















15May
2021

16May
2021

22May
2021

23May
2021

29May
2021

30May
2021

31May
2021

407

493

428

443

694

642

673

10Apr
2021 11Apr2021

17Apr
2021

18Apr
2021

24Apr
2021

25Apr
2021 



875

968

928

873 







1May2021 2May2021 3May2021 8May2021 9May2021
713

17Apr
2021

937


WEEKEND/BANKHOLTOWARDSLOWERKINGSRD 


863


691


754


439


523




1May2021 2May2021 3May2021 8May2021 9May2021
880






785

580

200

839

1163









B34

2Apr2021 3Apr2021 4Apr2021 5Apr2021

15May
2021

16May
2021

22May
2021

23May
2021

29May
2021

30May
2021

31May
2021

413

570

509

553

769

694

743

Annex 6: Annual average predicted NO2 concentration results (2020/2021)
Name

Road

Pre-Sche
me
(µg/m³)

With
[October]
(µg/m³)

With
[January]
(µg/m³)

With
[April]
(µg/m³)

April – Pre
Scheme
(µg/m³)

Percentage
change
relative to
AQS (%)

Impact of
change

Lower Ham Road
Lower Ham Rd

21.9

21.8

21.2

23.0

1.1

2.7

Negligible

R2

Woodside Rd

21.0

21.1

20.8

21.9

0.8

2.1

Negligible

R3

Richmond Rd
(A307)

30.4

30.9

28.3

32.3

1.9

4.7

Slight

R4

Bank Ln

22.5

22.7

22.0

23.5

1.0

2.6

Negligible

R5

Lower Ham Rd

20.6

20.5

20.0

21.4

0.9

2.1

Negligible

32.9

33.4

30.3

34.9

2.0

4.9

Slight

26.1

26.7

25.0

27.3

1.2

3.0

Negligible

24.7

25.4

23.7

26.7

2.0

5.0

Negligible

R6
R7
R8

Richmond Rd
(A307)
Richmond Rd
(A307)
Richmond Rd
(A307)

Red rows highlight adverse impacts of change. Green rows highlight beneficial impacts of change. Bold denotes exceedance of the annual mean AQS for NO2. Any
discrepancies in values are due to rounding.

B35

R1

Annex 7 - Redacted List of ETMO Responses
Object /
Support /
Neither
object nor
support
Objection

Comments

Objection

I would like to formally object to the Low Traffic Neighborhood planters that have been installed on Lower Ham Road.
The intervention has made the Ham end of Lower Ham Road a rat-run as people avoid the congested Richmond Road, it has also made
the end of Bank Lane a turning circle. Whilst I appreciate the latter is likely to reduce as Google Maps updates and individuals become
aware of the scheme, the former will not.
The traffic has increased along the narrowest section of Lower Ham Road, near Albany Outdoors, which is not what the scheme looked to
achieve.
I suggest a review of the traffic modelling, including the impact of any maintenance works, temporary traffic lights etc. on Richmond Road
and removal of the planters or installation of planters towards the Ham end of Lower Ham Road to ensure it is not used as a rat-run.

Thank for your letter regarding "Introducing new trial safety measures on Lower Ham Road, Kingston to create low traffic neighbourhood."
I am absolutely dismayed and appalled that a measure that is going to change my immediate area is being rushed though in this manner
and that we are only being told of it after the decision has been made.
My family and I live on Woodside Road so these new traffic barriers are going to be at the end of my road.
What concerns me most is that once these barriers are in place, it will be very difficult to have them removed. I do not believe for one
moment that they ever will be.
It is NOT OK to just do away with the formal process, just because the government have given you an impossible deadline.
I have young children [xxx], they go to school at [xxxx], and we often walk via lower ham road to avoid the pollution of the main road. I can
tell you categorically - IT IS NOT A RAT RUN. Far from it in fact. It is very peaceful and unpolluted.
Additionally, when I do take the car to Richmond, I actually enjoy taking the scenic route with the girls - we drive very slowly and share the
road with the many walkers, runners and cyclists.
Please can you let me know what I can do to stop these authoritarian measures - it is completely undemocratic to just do away with due
process. Not to mention, the whole scheme is completely unnecessary and I know many of my neighbours feel the same.
I look forward to hearing from you as soon as possible.

B36

As someone living in Woodside Road, I write to object strongly to the above scheme. What's it for? It's not to prevent cars from using it as
a rat run: Lower Ham Road is a dead end and runs slower than the Richmond Road. It's not as a cycle lane: the Thames cycle route runs
parallel to it. It could be to enable those few cyclists using it to use as a racetrack! I cycle all the time, and always have done since I first
started living here [xx] years ago. Now is the only time I have felt worried for my safety. Sometimes, as I'm cycling into Kingston along
Lower Ham Road, cyclists roar past me as close as possible, ignoring the 20mph speed limit. As a resident living in the road, you have
now ensured that all local residents having to go to work early, use either Woodside Road or Bank Lane to join the Richmond Road. This
starts at 5.30am. Thank you very much! At least before, the traffic was shared between the river roads. I would love to know how you can
claim to monitor the before and after effect, when to everyone's knowledge no monitoring of traffic took place prior to the scheme being
installed.
Then there are the cycle lanes. I don't need them, I don't want them, and it would seem with the lack of use no-one else does either. All
you have done is increase pollution from the congestion and from the appalling traffic delays, making Kingston a place no-one wants to
visit or shop. Well done!
Everyone could see in 30 secs what you took a month to realise, that by closing a lane on Kingston Bridge the damage done to the
community would be immense. No-one obeyed the social distancing over the bridge and cyclists ignored your requests. Your traffic
management is appalling and if you have a team employed to do it, you should fire them very quickly. In fact I have written to the
Department of Transport asking them to investigate how you can impose these schemes on local residents without consulting them and
then blame the DoT for doing so. I had your letter at 48 hours notice forbidding consultation!
If you want to monitor the residents feeling, you could do worse than read some of the posts on nextdoor neighbour!!

Objection

I am writing a formal letter of objection to the following Low Traffic Neighbourhood Schemes:
Albert Road - KingMap0045
Lower Ham Road - TMO-P302
King Charles Road - TMO-P306
I am writing with the following objections:
1) the 6 month 'trial' period of this scheme is far too long. Local and national leaders announce changes to coronavirus legislation up to
every 3 weeks, so 6 months (almost 9 times that amount of changes) seems ludicrous. The scheme needs to adapt to the every-changing
legislation so it can work with the community, rather than against it as it is doing now.
2) The scheme increases traffic. Having read through the documentation online, I still don't understand how closing said roads are
supposed to help traffic flow. With the cold and wet winter months approaching many more people want to use their personal vehicles
compared to walking or cycling. Therefore, these road closures don't benefit anyone since non-motor users don't use them, and motor
users can't use them, and this creates more traffic on the limited number of roads available left to drive on.
3) Cyclists. Cyclists are a massive problem in Kingston anyway because with ample cycle lanes they still cycle on the much narrower
roads. The same thing has happened with each LTN scheme. Cyclists are not using the blocked off roads designated for them, and are
instead using the chock-a-block roads that regular motorists have to use.
Basically, the scheme is highly flawed and should end as soon as the trial period ends, if not before.

B37

Objection

Neither object I am writing to you with regard to the LTN on lower ham road that has been installed.
I am a resident of Woodside Road, [xxx] so am right by the installation and It is causing problems with lorries and turning, plus vehicles
nor support

and bikes travelling at speed either up or past my house to get out or away from the blockage
I am also very concerned about when rowing regatta return as the boat trailers also cannot turn left from our road due to the angle of the
river streets and need to get out to Richmond road so they can no longer turn right and will therefore be trapped or have to three point turn
which is likely to damaged parked vehicles and cause pollution. The same is true for the large delivery lorries and dustcarts that come to
the pub which are all turning and forced up and road Woodside road as can't exit any other way
Having lived in the road for over [xx] years I can safely say I have never seen LHR congested with cars, in fact if can solve some issues if
there are problems in town that end up backing up Richmond road. The main issue is caused by pedestrians or runners using the road
rather than the pavement and bikes travelling, now at break neck speed, along LHR.
If the LTN is going to stay then some sort of crossing to canbury gardens will need to be put in as I have seen many people almost run
down now by cyclists and issues with the three point turns and speeding up woodside road with road rage to escape
I am happy to discuss the matter further at any time but hope that a more appropriate local for the LTN scheme can be found. I think the
second river roads have more issues with cut throughs and congestion so may be better served there

B38

Objection

B39

I write in response to your email about the LTNs imposed upon residents last year. First, to suggest that traffic data was taken before they
were imposed is frankly incredulous! I would love to know where and when data was taken, as the LTNs were imposed at 24 hours’ notice
in late March/early April with a note through the door, and no-one saw any monitoring equipment of any description prior to their
imposition. In fact, the locals were bemused at the time of imposition as to how you were going to compare data! The only equipment that
I, local businesses and residents have seen, were a couple of strips laid at the top of Woodside Road a week before lockdown 2 was
imposed and then taken away 2 days before lockdown 2 lifted; so for the duration of lockdown 2!! I have to say, the council and the traffic
department were laughed at for that blatant attempt to skew figures to suit their agenda! If you use those to support your traffic numbers, I
shall personally be writing to the Dept of Transport and telling them the above! I shall also make certain others do as well. How can you
collect any meaningful data during the current crisis? No-one is travelling, no-one is using their car (during the last year I have driven mine
once every 6 weeks), how can any data be believed until traffic is back to normal? Your email is so biased and obviously in favour of the
LTNs staying.
Now for the reason I am dead against these awful pot plants staying. First, here in Woodside Road, since installation we have seen a
marked increase in traffic from about 5.45 in the morning…..remember this is between lockdowns and not during the time you
conveniently put the strips in the road! Before the plant pots, traffic would be shared out between all the river roads as local residents
drove to and from their work, or set off on journeys they wished to make. Now, they are all funnelled up and down Woodside Road and
Bank Lane, either side of the plants. Of course Lower Ham Road has never been a short-cut to anywhere as it is blanked off, except on
the occasions Richmond Road is blocked, usually due to the insane unused cycle lanes now clogging the centre of Kingston, or flooding
under the underpass as Kingston Council neglect their core responsibilities and fail to clear the gutters and drains. Second, Lower Ham
Road is now dangerous. It is a danger from cyclists, who appear to believe they have been given so many rights they can do no wrong!
They are certainly impervious to being stopped! The few that actually use Lower Ham Road now think it is their own personal velodrome,
disregarding the 20mph speed limit and pedestrians and arrive silently, ignoring pedestrians, some of whom have their heads buried in
phone screens. At least with cars you can hear them! Others still cycle through Canbury Gardens (which of course they shouldn’t) and the
shared Kingston Tow Path. So that’s 4 routes for cyclists into town from Ham! It might surprise you to know I too am cyclist, and other
cyclists like me, quite rightly think LHR is far too dangerous. I now never cycle into Kingston, preferring to take the car: it’s safer!
I also don’t use the cycle lanes, and I gather I am not alone in this. I don’t use them because I don’t need to be told where to cycle: I keep
left and give way to everything. The MAMILs don’t use them as it slows them down and they can’t cycle 2 abreast. Currently I have 2
methods of exercise which I do most days: either cycle along Richmond Road to Ham, down round Grey Court then back along the tow
path. The other is regularly doing the bridge to bridge walk (Kingston to Teddington) and very seldom do I see cyclists use the cycle path
on the bridge, built at enormous tax-payers expense. Most still use the road. What a waste.
The only reason you are now consulting the residents is because of the anger these things have caused amongst locals across the
capital. Even the awful Grant Shapps, who gave you the money to do it has had to back-track, and write to councils trying to wheedle his
way out of the debacle. The high court has also gone against the mayor for installing cycle lanes without consulting the rate-payers. So
may a lesson be learnt from this. If councils are going to do anything radical and impose their own ideals and vision on others, always get
the residents onside first. Don’t use a pandemic as an excuse as the high court found against the mayor. If you had taken a survey first
and abided by an independent scrutiny, I would have reluctantly accepted it. Look at what happened with the Kingston Bridge debacle.
Anyone with any intelligence could see what that was going to do to a major artery, especially with the delay to the emergency services. It’
s unbelievable the amount of money that is wasted. If the cycle lanes do have to come out, I hope the mayor, Grant Shapps, local
councillors, local traffic teams and all the people at TFL have to pay some of the money to do so. Why should the tax payer who has to
pay to put them in, and then when it proves to be a disaster for the city, plus local town centres in terms of shopping and local residents
who have their homes blighted by closed roads and diverted traffic, have to pay to have them taken them out?
I am angry about the lack of accountability!

Objection

I have delayed responding to this trial as it has been hard to assess the true impact of this barrier during lockdown, or even between full
lockdowns but with restricted movement.
However, as the trial is now nearing the end I have to comment now.
We live in Albany Mews and, for us, the barrier on Lower Ham Road creates a significant inconvenience. We already have heavy traffic
around the entrance to the Mews and trying to go up Albany Park Road to Richmond Road during peak school hours. Richmond Road is
always a busy road so is best avoided. It is obviously quieter during lockdown but that is not representative of normal traffic volumes so
this trial is not providing information about the typical impact on traffic, particularly on Richmond Road.
Previously when visiting local shops we used to be able to stay away from Richmond Road by going along Albany Park Road and down
Bank Lane to drop into Lower Ham Road and go along to come up any of the side roads to get near to our required shop. This is most
often the Post Office at the top of Eastbury Road but applies to any of the other local shops also.
Now we have to join all the traffic on Richmond Road to get to these shops - adding to the already heavy congestion - and if we are trying
to get out when the schools are starting or finishing it is a very hazardous and gridlock often occurs, so we avoid that as much as possible.
The council has said it wants us to support local shops but this barrier is impeding on that.
In 2019 we invested heavily in a fully electric car so that we could do local journeys without adding to the already high levels of pollution in
Kingston. Now we are being penalised for using the car at all by having this barrier.
Richmond Road does not need more traffic being forced onto it and that’s what this barrier achieves. And Bank Lane is now a serious
hazard as the entrance is narrow and cars have to queue up on Richmond Road waiting to turn into Bank Lane because they have to let
traffic come out of Bank Lane first.
We would like to see the barrier removed and for us to be able to move freely to our local shops.
We hope you will take these concerns into consideration and remove the barrier.

B40

